Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc.
12500 Network Blvd Ste 310
San Antonio, TX 78249
http://eo2.com

Up to $1,234,997.52 in Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock at $1.59
Minimum Target Amount: $14,998.47

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.



Company:

Company: Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc.

Address: 12500 Network Blvd Ste 310, San Antonio, TX 78249
State of Incorporation: DE

Date Incorporated: May 18, 2007

Terms:

Equity

Offering Minimum: $14,998.47 | 9,433 shares of Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock
Offering Maximum: $1,234,997.52 | 776,728 shares of Series A Non-Voting Preferred
Stock

Type of Security Offered: Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock

Purchase Price of Security Offered: $1.59

Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $298.92

"Maximum number of shares offered subject to adjustment for bonus shares. See
Bonus info below.

Time Based Perks

o First 72 hours - 10% Super Early Bird Bonus

o First week (days 4-7) — 8% Very Early Bird Bonus
o First 3 weeks (week 2 & 3) - 5% Early Bird Bonus

Amount Based Perks

o $600+ - 3% bonus shares , Member, Contributing to enabling advanced healing with
OXygen.

0 $1,500+ - 5% bonus shares, Leader, Leading the way in oxygen healing solutions.

0 $5,000+ — 8% bonus shares, Innovator, Bringing next generation solutions to oxygen
delivery and patient monitoring.

o $15,000+ - 10% bonus shares, Visionary, Ensuring the long-term growth and
innovation in oxygen solutions for health care.

Lovyalty Bonus - 10% Bonus Shares for Friends and Family

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in

the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus shares from perks
will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when combined,
meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

The 10% StartEngine Owners' Bonus




Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc. will offer 10% additional bonus shares for all
investments that are committed by investors that are eligible for the StartEngine
Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's bonus.

This means eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% bonus for any shares
they purchase in this offering. For example, if you buy 100 shares of Series A Non-
Voting Preferred Stock at $1.59/ share, you will receive 110 shares of Series A Non-
Voting Preferred Stock, meaning you'll own 110 shares for $159. Fractional shares will
not be distributed and share bonuses will be determined by rounding down to the
nearest whole share.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investor's eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and the time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible
investors will also receive the Owner’s Bonus and an the Loyalty bonus in addition to
the aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview

Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc. (“EO2 Concepts” or the “Company”) was
formed on May 18, 2007 and is a C-Corp organized under the laws of the state of
Delaware that has developed a skin and soft tissue restoration therapy that improves
healing through continuous infusion of oxygen into the skin using a proprietary
oxygen diffusion dressing that distributes the oxygen evenly to the affected tissue.
Our continuous diffusion of oxygen (CDO) therapy has been shown to significantly
reduce healing times, rapidly reduce pain and enhance appearance of skin. Qur
customers range from patients desiring better outcomes in cosmetic and restorative
surgery to those who have more severe issues such as burns, ulcers and amputations.
We are a vertically integrated company that designs, develops, manufactures,
distributes and supports our products. Our system consists of a wearable, solid state
continuous oxygen generator, oxygen diffusion dressings of various sizes and styles,
and accessories. We have a corporate partner, The VGM Group, who assists us with
functions such as billing, logistics, marketing and branding.

We are present in several distinct marketplaces, each with their own business model,
yet our basic model is to rent the OxyGeni System for the duration of therapy and have
it returned at the end of the therapy. The dressings are single use consumables that
are sold in packs or as part of cost bundling with the rental. Depending on the market,
we have models that range from daily to weekly and monthly rentals, with or without
a bulk quantity of dressings included. Payment models vary from cash (elective
procedures) to purchase orders against a credit card (Veterans Affairs and Indian
Health) to insurance reimbursement. On a limited basis, we also sell the OxyGeni



System as well. In our Elective and Insurance markets we have demonstrated triple
digit growth rates in the past two years.

We have been issued 6 US and multiple international patents, with more pending.

Competitors and Industry

Industry

We started in the chronic wound care market, yet have been exploring other markets
based on the science of how oxygen can improve healing and feedback from doctors
and nurses who have used our system. Our newest and fastest growing market is in
aesthetic and reconstructive surgery, which includes procedures such face lifts, breast
reductions, laser facials, and most recently, vascular occlusions. For this market we
are launching our AR2T initiative: Appearance Restoration and Regeneration
Treatment. We will be expanding further into surgical procedures with the launch of
our new OxySpur Lite dressing line.

People often don’t understand that wounds are not limited to scarring from surgeries
or other injuries. Chronic wounds are experienced by approximately 4 million patients
a year in the US alone and cost our healthcare system more than the top 4 cancers
combined. They can last for months or years, result in amputations and severely
impact the quality of life of patients and those close to them. The OxyGeni system has
been shown to work effectively on these chronic wounds, and potentially better than
any other advanced wound care therapy.

We are targeting Chronic Wounds and Aesthetics/Plastics which have large US market
sizes ($13.5B and 18.8B, resp.) and are growing at high rates (-5% & 9% per annum,
resp.), with much larger sizes and growth rates globally. Our penetration into this
marketplace is minimal considering these sizes, vet we have seen an increase in the
insurance-reimbursable chronic wound market of 248% this year over last. Our growth
in the Aesthetics cash market has averaged more than 340% annually over the last two
years.

Sources:
https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/us-wound-care-centers-
market
https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/cosmetic-surgery-procedure-
market

Competitors

EO2 has four competitors in the topically applied oxygen marketplace, vet they are
essentially limited to the chronic wound care market and primarily include two
companies that use large, bulky, hot & noisy high-flow oxygen respirators to supply
oxygen to a bag over the damaged skin for 90 minutes a day, an inconvenience during
which the patient is required to be immobile. This therapy is similar to larger
Hyperbaric Oxygen Therapy (HBOT) only on a smaller scale. The two other



competitors do supply a oxygen continuously to a wound, but neither as any wound
monitoring capabilities, nor do they have a dressing system that ensures even
distribution of oxygen across the skin while providing moist wound therapy. We are
the only system that monitors the pressure at the tissue bed and provides performance
feedback to the patient. (1) This allows us to not only ensure that the oxygen therapy
is working properly, vet also will allow us to monitor and guide patients with therapy
compliance in our next generation system (including proper application of the
dressing and connection to the generator, proper offloading of the tissue to prevent
pressure damage and direct feedback to the patients). Another differentiating feature
of our system is the ability to vary the amount of oxygen being supplied to the wound.
This assists in management of the wound, can accommodate various wound sizes and
can affect pain control. Simply said, we are the only system which can vary the oxygen
flow, monitor the wound and provide feedback to the patient, both now (1) and into
the future thanks to our broad patent protection.

Oropallo A, Andersen CA, Topical Oxygen, StatPearls 2021, NCBI Bookshelf ID
NBK574579, PMID 34662093

Current Stage and Roadmap

We are on the market in the US and internationally with our OxyGeni System in
several markets. Our products are developed in house and we continue to launch new
innovative features in both design and function. For example, we launched a new
dressing early this year, are launching another one this Fall, and have improved and
released some of the system accessories. We have prototypes of our next generation,
internet-based OxyGeni System with smartphone apps in development for launch in
2023,

In the last several years, we have made significant progress on multiple fronts,
dramatically increasing sales in both cash and insurance markets, launching new
products and entering new markets such as plastics and aesthetics. Our Scientific
Advisory Board is the Who's Who among the wound care market. Internationally, in
Canada, we have gone from unpaid trials in a few territories to payment models in 6
territories. We have had patents issue for smartphone control and remote monitoring,
covering the next generation prototypes that are currently being manufactured and
tested. We have had multiple papers issue on our clinical results, research and
technology from notable key opinion leaders who are not only nationally, vet also
internationally respected and recognized. We are moving the needle by creating
products designed for the shifts in medicine to allow the patients to be more involved
in their own care, such as app design, automated product delivery models, and Al
driven communication to encourage engagement in their own care to drive positive
outcomes.

EO2 has studies to show that our therapy heals wounds as fast or faster than other
treatments on the market, yet at a lower cost per patient. Our vision is to demonstrate
to the medical community that our wearable oxygen therapy treatment sytem will be
the standard of care in large segment of in the near future. We are in the early phases



of rapid growth as we continue to gain traction and acceptance in established and new
markets.

We will be using the funds to 1) complete development and launch our next
generation system and design/launch new dressings for aesthetic markets where we
will have little competition; 2) expand our market share by increasing our sales and
support presence in new geographies; 3) build inventory to support increasing sales
activities; and 4) continue building clinical evidence to support new markets and
reimbursement models.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Mark Niederauer
Mark Niederauer's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: President, CEO, Board Member
Dates of Service: August, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Directly involved in leading and overseeing the capital raise

efforts on behalf of the Company. $288,400 salary, 70% of salary in equity as
bonus.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: EO2 Concepts
Title: COO & CTO
Dates of Service: January, 2010 - August, 2021
Responsibilities: Responsible for all research, development, logistics,
operations, intellectual property, supply chain and manufacturing.

Name: Justin Cypert
Justin Cypert's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and otffices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Controller
Dates of Service: January, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Company Controller with Fiduciary responsibity to
shareholders and board of directors. Manage financial operations including
accounting, a/p, a/r, purchasing and customer service, $105,947 salary, 40% of
salary in equity as bonus.



Name: Dave Kazynski
Dave Kazynski's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Exec. VP of Sales and Marketing, Board Member
Dates of Service: March, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: I am involved in most day-to-day processes and decision
making and assist the CEO with presentations to potential investors.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: VGM Homelink
Title: President
Dates of Service: July, 1993 - February, 2022

Responsibilities: Responsible for all business aspects of the Homelink Division of
VGM.

Name: Peter Smith

Peter Smith's current primary role is with LP Smith Associates. Peter Smith currently
services 2 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chairman of the Board of Directors
Dates of Service: January, 2009 - Present

Responsibilities: Provide leadership to the Board of Directors. Work directly with
the management team on certain issues. 50,000 stock options.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: LP Smith Associates
Title: Managing Partner
Dates of Service: January, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: Oversees the Organization.

Name: Jim Walsh

Jim Walsh's current primary role is with VGM Group Inc. Jim Walsh currently services
1 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board of Directors Member



Dates of Service: January, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: BOD approvals. 50,000 stock options.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: VGM Group Inc
Title: Board Chairman and General Counsel
Dates of Service: January, 1986 - Present

Responsibilities: Serve as General Counsel for VGM Group and Chair of the
Board of Directors

Name: [im DeYoung

Jim DeYoung's current primary role is with Winston Partners Inc.. Jim DeYoung
currently services 1 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Board Member
Dates of Service: January, 2009 - Present
Responsibilities: BOD approvals. 50,000 options.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Winston Partners Inc.
Title: Founder and a Principal
Dates of Service: July, 1984 - Present
Responsibilities: Provides strategic corporate advisory and investor relations
services to private and public companies.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed

companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk
An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, "us”, “our”, or “Company”)



involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the stock
should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient to
enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the
Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential investor
regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the other
information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will be able
to provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still
attract business.

Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess

The valuation for the offering was established by the Company. Unlike listed
companies that are valued publicly through market-driven stock prices, the valuation
of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to assess and you may risk
overpaying for your investment.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any stock purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to SEC
limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot be
resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring the
stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time

You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the educational software development industry. However, that
may never happen or it may happen at a price that results in you losing money on this
investment.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. [ssuing more equity may require bringing on



additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.
Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign

page.

We are reliant on one main type of service

All of our current services are variants on one type of service, providing a platform for
online capital formation. Our revenues are therefore dependent upon the market for
online capital formation.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

The Series A Non-Voting Preferred that an investor is buying has no voting rights
attached to them. This means that you will have no rights in dictating on how the
Company will be run. You are trusting in management discretion in making good
business decisions that will grow your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a
liquidation of our company, you will only be paid out if there is any cash remaining



after all of the creditors of our company have been paid out.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow vour investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

This offering involves “rolling closings, ” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not
uncommeon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

Our new product could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected

QOur growth projections are based on an assumption that with an increased advertising
and marketing budget our products will be able to gain traction in the marketplace at
a faster rate than our current products have. It is possible that our new products will
fail to gain market acceptance for any number of reasons. If the new products fail to
achieve significant sales and acceptance in the marketplace, this could materially and
adversely impact the value of your investment.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.



We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
owns multiple patents, patent applications, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain
names, and trade secrets. We believe one of the most valuable components of the
Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may
misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The Company intends to
continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade
the capital of the Company.

We have pending patent approval’s that might be vulnerable

One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company's
intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names,
and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio.
Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to confinue to protect its intellectual property
portfolio from such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs
associated with such practices may invade the capital of the Company due to its
unregistered intellectual property.

Our trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Intellectual property is a complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is
possible that competitors will be able to design around our intellectual property, find
prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents unenforceable through some other
mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark and copyright protection
without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company’s value will be materially
and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete in
the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed
unenforceable, the Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might
be able to raise by entering into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential
revenue stream for the Company.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, vour investment in



the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right
positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of yvour
investment.

QOur ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

Our ability to sell product is dependent on the outside government regulation such as
the FDA (Food and Drug Administration), FTC (Federal Trade Commission) and other
relevant government laws and regulations. The laws and regulations concerning the
selling of product may be subject to change and if they do then the selling of product
may no longer be in the best interest of the Company. At such point the Company may
no longer want to sell product and therefore your investment in the Company may be
affected.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company may incur losses in the foreseeable future.

The Company has limited revenue and may not generate adequate revenues to not
operate at a loss. Examples of the risks inherent to companies which are not operating
on a cash flow positive basis: » Regulatory requirements, setbacks and delays; »
Marketing problems and costs; » Acceptance of our products and services in the
marketplace; = Ability to anticipate and adapt to a competitive market and rapid
technological developments; « Operating costs; » Our competitive environment; s
Ability to fund intellectual property protection and ownership; « Expenses that may



exceed current estimates; and « Ability to raise additional funds.

We may not be able to successfully commercialize our product.

The successful commercialization of our product and our technologies is crucial for
our success. Our product and its potential applications face a variety of risks and
uncertainties. Principally, those risks include the following:  Even if our product is
shown to be safe and effective for its intended purpose, we may face significant or
unforeseen difficulties in obtaining or manufacturing sufficient quantities at
reasonable prices; = We may not be able to receive billing codes for certain pavyors,
including Medicare, to pay for the use of our products; « QOur ability to complete the
commercialization of our product is dependent upon our ability to obtain and
maintain experienced and committed partners to assist us with the distribution of our
products; » There is no guarantee that there will be market acceptance of our
products; and = Our competitors may develop therapeutics, treatments, and
technologies which are superior or less costly than our own with the result that our
products may not generate significant revenues.

We are Dependent Upon and Restricted by our Relationship with VGM

We currently have a distribution agreement with VGM. VGM is the nation’s largest
members services organization for the Home Medical Equipment industry. The
Company is relying on this relationship in providing for a cost effective and
streamlined infrastructure to help achieve wound care supplier distribution and
market penetration. We cannot be assured that VGM will be able to engage its
members in distributing our product or that the members will be able to successfully
market and sell the products. VGM is also a strategic investor in the Company and has
representation on the Company’s Board. VGM or its affiliates beneficially own 33% of
the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company. They have the
ability to exercise substantial control over the Company’s affairs and corporate actions
requiring shareholder approval, including electing directors, selling all or
substantially all of the assets, merging with another entity or amending its certificate
of incorporation. This control could delay, deter or prevent a change in control and
could adversely affect the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for
the Company’s securities.

We are Dependent Upon and Restricted by our Relationship with VGM

We currently have a distribution agreement with VGM. VGM is the nation’s largest
members services organization for the Home Medical Equipment industry. The
Company is relying on this relationship in providing for a cost effective and
streamlined infrastructure to help achieve wound care supplier distribution and
market penetration. We cannot be assured that VGM will be able to engage its
members in distributing our product or that the members will be able to successfully
market and sell the products. VGM is also a strategic investor in the Company and has
representation on the Company’s Board. VGM or its affiliates beneficially own 33% of
the issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock of the Company. They have the
ability to exercise substantial control over the Company’s affairs and corporate actions
requiring shareholder approval, including electing directors, selling all or
substantially all of the assets, merging with another entity or amending its certificate



of incorporation. This control could delay, deter or prevent a change in control and
could adversely affect the price that investors might be willing to pay in the future for
the Company’s securities,

If we lose any of our key suppliers, or the suppliers stop making the components we
need, we may be unable to meet customer orders for our product in a timely manner
and within our budget.

We rely on one or more key domestic suppliers for raw materials and components used
in our device and for our ancillary products. In the future, one or more of our suppliers
may decide for reasons beyond our control to cease supplying us with raw materials
and components or may not be able to meet our quality or quantity demands. FDA
regulations may require additional testing of any raw materials or components from
new suppliers prior to our use of these materials or components, which could delay or
prevent our access or use of such raw materials or components. If we are unable to
obtain materials we need from our suppliers and we cannot obtain these materials
from other sources, we may be unable to manufacture our product for a period of time
or within our manufacturing budget, which could negatively impact the results of our
operations.

Our product may become obsolete.

Because the biomedical industry has been characterized by the frequent introduction
of new products, we may be adversely affected by the new products and technology
developed by our competitors, and our product may become obsolete. Significant
competitive factors determining whether we will be able to compete successfully
include: » Marketing and sales capabilities; » Reimbursement coverage from Medicare,
Medicaid, insurance companies and others; » Product availability; = Price; and » Patent
protection.

The commercial success of any wound care product depends, in part, on obtaining
adequate reimbursement from payors.

Coverage and adequate payments may not be available or may not be sufficient to
allow us to rent our product or to sell our ancillary products on a competitive basis. In
both the United States and elsewhere, rental and sale of medical products, diagnostics,
and therapeutics are dependent, in part, on the availability of reimbursement from
third party payors, such as health maintenance organizations and other private
insurance plans and governmental programs such as Medicare and Medicaid. Third
party payors are increasingly challenging the prices charged for wound care products
and services. Payors continue to review their coverage policies carefully for existing
and new therapies and can, without notice, deny coverage for treatments that include
use of our product. Consequently, we may be unable to sell our product on a profitable
basis if third--party payors deny coverage or reduce their levels of reimbursement.
Furthermore, we anticipate that our business will be affected by the efforts of
government and third party payors to contain or reduce the cost of health care
through various means. Since reimbursement rates are established by fee schedules
mandated by pavors, we are not able to offset the effects of general inflation in labor
and related cost components, if any, through increases in our pricing for our product.
Consequently, such cost increases could erode our profit margins and reduce our net



income. In the United States, there have been and will continue to be a number of
federal and state proposals to implement government controls on pricing. Similar
government pricing controls exist in varying degrees in other countries. In addition,
the emphasis on managed care in the United States has increased and will continue to
increase the pressure on the pricing of wound care products. We cannot predict the
extent of legislative or regulatory proposals that will be adopted or the effect efforts
on our business. Coverage and reimbursement for our product could be negatively
impacted by legislative, regulatory or other measures that reduce coverage and
reimbursement generally, and such developments could have an adverse effect on our
ability to sell our product or cause our customers to use less expensive products, all of
which could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company may be unable to receive Medicare reimbursement.

The Company has been seeking Level IT HCPCS rental code from CMS for its product
but has been unable to receive approval. This is necessary in order for the product to
be reimbursable under/paid by the Medicare program. There are no assurances that
the Company will obtain a new unique HCPCS code from CMS with profitable pricing
and coverage criteria for the product and, as a result, our business may be materially
affected. Due to its coverage of the elderly population, Medicare is a significant payor
in the healthcare industry, including the wound care market. This population can be
prone to wounds or may be more susceptible to wounds, including hard-to-treat
wounds, and our failure to secure Medicare coding and coverage for the product would
result in our inability to service a significant portion of the healthcare market and
could have a material adverse effect on the Company. Even if we ultimately obtain our
HCPCS code, CMS could always adopt policies or procedures that are unfavorable to
us, resulting in a reduction in reimbursement. This could materially and adversely
affect our business and results of operations. Additionally, due to the increased
scrutiny and publicity of government efforts to contain healthcare costs, we may be
subject to future assessments or studies by federal and state agencies and private
pavors which could lead to reimbursement policies that adversely affect our business.

If our contracted wound care suppliers are not able to obtain and/or timely collect
reimbursement payments our financial condition may suffer.

Medicare is a very complex program with many different facets. It is a federally funded
health insurance program administered by the CMS. Medical devices and supplies are
covered by Medicare Part B. The Medicare Part B coverage policy covering products
such as ours is itself complex and requires extensive documentation. In addition, the
reimbursement process for the non---Medicare payor segment requires extensive
contract development and administration with several hundred payors, with widely
varying requirements for documentation and administrative procedures, which can
result in extended payment cycles for our contracted wound care suppliers. This has
made billing home care payors a more complex and time consuming process, and the
complexities and procedures of these can mean we may not be able to timely or fully
collect payment from our contracted wound care suppliers. Such delays and/or
reductions could negatively affect our financial condition.

If we fail to comply with extensive regulations enforced by the FDA, in addition to



potential sanctions that can be imposed by the FDA, the commercialization of our
device and the ancillary products in the U.S. would be prevented or delayed.

Qur device and ancillary products are subject to extensive government regulations
related to their development, clinical trials, manufacturing and commercialization.
Each jurisdiction in which we may operate has its own regulatory scheme addressing
the development, testing, labeling, manufacturing, registration, notification,
marketing, distribution, record---keeping and reporting requirements for medical
devices. Our device and ancillary products are subject to extensive regulation in the
United States by the FDA. The FDA regulates virtually all aspects of a medical device’s
testing, manufacture, safety, labeling, storage, record keeping, reporting, promotion
and distribution. In general, unless an exemption applies, a medical device must
receive either premarket approval or premarket clearance from the FDA before it can
be marketed in the U.S. In addition to clearance/approval requirements that we must
meet before marketing our device and ancillary products, we are subject to other
significant regulations. As a manufacturer of medical devices, we are subject to
regulation by the FDA of our design and manufacturing processes and facilities under
the FDA’s Quality System Regulations ("QSR”) requirements (“Good Manufacturing
Practice™) and other similar regulations. These regulations require that we design and
manufacture our products and maintain documents in a prescribed manner with
respect to design, manufacturing, testing and control activities. More specifically, the
regulations require that medical device manufacturers comply with various quality
control requirements pertaining to design controls, purchasing contracts,
organization and personnel, including device and manufacturing process design,
buildings, environmental control, cleaning and sanitation; equipment and calibration
of equipment; medical device components; manufacturing specifications and
processes; reprocessing of devices; labeling and packaging; inprocess and finished
device inspection and acceptance; device failure investigations; and recordkeeping
requirements including complaint files and device tracking. The FDA and various state
agencies also regulate the labeling of our medical devices, including promotional
activities sponsored or marketing activities distributed by the Company. The
Company is also subject to certain registration, listing and reporting requirements
applicable to manufacturers of medical devices. Our failure to comply with regulatory
requirements of the FDA and other applicable U.S. (state) regulatory and licensing
requirements may subject us to administrative or judicially imposed sanctions, and
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of
operation. If we make any modifications to our device or its indications for use, we
may have additional regulatory obligations. We may be required to obtain premarket
approvals, premarket approval supplements or premarket clearances (510(k)s) to
market modifications to our existing device or to market our existing device for new
indications. The FDA requires device manufacturers themselves to make and
document a determination of whether or not a modification requires an approval,
supplement or clearance; however, the FDA can review and disagree with the
manufacturer’s decision. We cannot assure you that that we will be successful in
receiving approvals or clearances in the future or that the FDA will agree with our
decisions not to seek approvals, supplements or clearances for particular device
modifications. The FDA may require approval or clearances for past or any future



modifications or new indications for our existing device. Such submissions may
require the submission of additional clinical or preclinical data and may be time-
consuming and costly, and may not ultimately be cleared or approved by the FDA. If
the FDA requires us to obtain premarket approvals, premarket approval supplements
or premarket clearances for any modification to our previously-cleared product, we
may be required to cease manufacturing and marketing of the modified device or to
recall such modified device until we obtain FDA clearance or approval, and we may be
subject to significant regulatory fines or penalties. In addition, there can be no
assurance that the FDA will clear or approve such submissions in a timely manner, if
at all. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect our business. If we develop any new
products in the future, such future products would likely require FDA premarket
approval or 510(k) clearance prior to being marketed. The process of obtaining these
approvals or clearances can be lengthy and expensive. We may not be able to obtain
(for future products) or maintain (for our current product) necessary approvals for
testing and marketing our products. Moreover, regulatory approvals, if granted, may
include significant limitations on the individuated uses for which our products may be
marketed or other restrictions or requirements that reduce the value to us of the
product. Regulatory authorities (FDA and any future applicable foreign authorities, if
any) may also withdraw product approvals or clearances if we fail to comply with
regulatory standards or if any problems related to our product develops following
initial marketing. Failure to comply with existing or future regulatory requirements
could have a significant negative effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. The FDA may also change its policies, adopt additional regulations, or
revise existing regulations, each of which could impact our ability to market our
product. Any such changes could adversely affect our business. Failure to comply with
the regulatory requirements of the FDA and other applicable regulatory requirements
may subject a company to administrative or judicially imposed sanctions. These
include: » Warning letters; » Civil penalties; » Criminal penalties; » Injunctions; »
Product seizure or detention; = Product recalls; = Total or partial suspension of
production; and » FDA refusal to approve pending new applications. In the
development of new products or new indications or modifications to our existing
product, or if a pre-market approval is ever required in the future for our product, we
may need to conduct or sponsor clinical trials. Clinical trials are expensive and require
a significant investment of time and resources and may not generate the data we need
to support a submission to the FDA. Clinical trials are subject to regulation by the
FDA and, if federal funds are involved or if an investigator or site has signed a federal
assurance, are subject to further regulation by the Office of Human Subject Protection
and the National Institutes of Health. Failure to comply with such regulation,
including but not limited to, failure to obtain adequate consent of subjects and to
adequately disclose financial conflicts, could result in fines, penalties, suspension of
trials, and the inability to use the data to support a FDA submission.

Changes in laws and regulations could have a material adverse effect on the Company.
There can be no assurance that government regulations applicable to the Company’s
current product or the interpretation thereof will not change and thereby prevent the
Company from marketing its product for a period of time or permanently. The



Company cannot predict the scope and extent of the effect of current laws on the
Company’s operations and is unable to predict the extent of adverse governmental
regulation which might arise. If the U.S. federal government, or the government of any
other jurisdiction, changes its laws and/or regulations in such a way that it affects our
business, we cannot predict what form any such legislation and/or regulation may
take or what effect, if any, such legislation and/or regulation would have on our
business. It is possible that any future legislation or regulation may contain provisions
resulting in price limits and utilization controls which may reduce the rate of increase
in the growth of our market or otherwise adversely affect the Company’s business.
Therefore, current and future laws and regulations may have a material adverse effect
on our business.

Foreign law and regulation could have an adverse effect on our business.

If we expand current operations to jurisdictions outside the United States, regulatory
approvals may be required for our product and additional approvals may be necessary
for any products which may be developed in the future. Government regulation in
other countries could be a significant factor affecting research, development,
manufacture, marketing and sales of the product or future products in foreign
jurisdictions. In foreign jurisdictions, these activities are subject to foreign
governmental regulation, which is in many respects similar to regulation in the United
States, but which varies from country to country. Compliance with foreign law and
regulation could result in additional burdens on our operations, and failure to comply
with those laws and regulations could result in fines, suspension or withdrawal of
necessary regulatory approvals, product recalls, operating restrictions, and other
penalties. Additionally, the cost of maintaining personnel and systems necessary to
comply with foreign law and regulations applicable to our product and any future
products is substantial.

QOur product is subject to regulatory recalls. Recalls could harm our reputation and
business.

We are subject to ongoing medical device reporting regulations that require us to
report to the FDA if our product causes or contributes to a death or serious injury or
malfunctions in a way that would be reasonably likely to contribute to death or serious
injury if the malfunction were to recur. The FDA has authority to require recall of our
product in the event of material deficiencies or defects in design or manufacturing. In
addition, in light of a material deficiency or design defect or defect in labeling, we may
voluntarily elect to recall our product. A government mandated or voluntary recall by
us could occur as a result of component failures, manufacturing errors or design
defects, including defects in labeling. Any recall would divert managerial and financial
resources and could harm our reputation with all of our customer suppliers and with
the healthcare professionals that use, prescribe and recommend our product. We
cannot assure you that we will not have product recalls in the future or that such
recalls would not have a material adverse effect on our business.

We may expand into new markets and products, and our expansion may not be
successful.
We may expand into new markets through the development of new product



applications based on our existing technology and design capabilities. These efforts
could require us to make substantial investments, including significant research,
development, engineering and capital expenditures for new, expanded or improved
manufacturing facilities which would divert resources from other aspects of our
business. Expansion into new markets and products may be costly without resulting in
any benefit to us. Specific risks in connection with expanding into new markets
include the inability to transfer our quality standards to new products, the failure of
customers in new markets to accept our products, and price competition in new
markets. If we choose to expand into markets and are unsuccessful, our financial
condition and results of operations could be adversely affected.

We are subject to substantial government regulation that could have a material
adverse effect on our business.

Certain federal and state laws and regulations regarding reimbursement and coverage
of products and services by Medicare and Medicaid, as well as federal and state laws
addressing health care fraud and abuse, physician self---referrals, and other
relationships with providers are broad in scope and apply, or will soon apply, to our
relationships with health care providers and entities who may purchase, prescribe or
recommend our product, and who assist us in the development and promotion of our
product, and we may be required to alter one or more of our practices to be in
compliance with these laws. Health care laws are complex and even minor,
inadvertent irregularities in submissions or contracts can potentially give rise to
claims that the law has been violated. Any violations of these laws could result in a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
If there is a change in law, regulation, administrative or judicial interpretations, we
may have to change our business practices or our existing business practices could be
challenged as unlawful, which could have a material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition and results of operations. We are, or with respect to some laws and
regulations pertaining to Medicare and Medicaid referrals and reimbursement, may
soon be, directly or indirectly subject to extensive regulation by both the federal
government and the governments of states in which we conduct business, including:
(1) the federal Medicare and Medicaid anti-kickback law, and state anti-kickback
prohibitions and state law equivalents, (2) the federal False Claims Act, (3) the federal
Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, as amended (“HIPAA™),
and state laws relating to patient privacy, (4) the federal physician self-referral
prohibition commonly known as the Stark law and the state law equivalents of the
Stark law, and (5) federal and state billing and claims submission laws and regulations.
The federal anti-kickback law prohibits the knowing and willful offer, payment,
solicitation or receipt of any form of remuneration in return for, or in order to induce,
(i) the referral of a person for services, (ii) the furnishing of arranging for the
furnishing of items or services, or (iil) the purchase, lease, or order or arranging or
recommending purchasing, leasing or ordering of any item or service, in each case,
reimbursable under any federal health care program. The Stark law prohibits a
physician from referring a Medicare (or Medicaid) patient for “designated health
services” or DHS, to an entity with which the physician has a direct or indirect
financial relationship, whether in the nature of an ownership interest or a



compensation arrangement, subject only to limited exceptions. The Stark law also
prohibits the recipient of the prohibited referral from billing for the DHS provided
pursuant thereto. If our operations, or our future operations, are found to be in
violation of any of the laws and regulations to which we or our customers (suppliers,
physicians, facilities or others) are subject, we may be subject to applicable penalties
associated with such violation(s), including civil and criminal penalties, damages,
fines, exclusion from Medicare, Medicaid and other governmental healthcare
programs, loss of licenses, and the curtailment of our operations. While we believe we
are currently in compliance with all applicable laws, we cannot assure that our
activities will be found to be in compliance with these laws if scrutinized by regulatory
authorities or that our current activities will be deemed in compliance in the future.
Any penalties, damages, fines or curtailment of our operations, individually or in the
aggregate, could adversely affect our ability to operate and could negatively affect our
business and financial results. The risk of us being found in violation of these laws and
regulations is increased by the fact that many of the laws and regulations have not
been fully interpreted by the regulatory authorities or in the courts, and their
provisions are open to a variety of interpretations. Any action brought against us for
violation of these laws or regulations, even if we were to successfully defend against
it, could cause us to incur significant legal expenses and divert our management’s
attention from the operation of our business. Additionally, any allegations of such
violations or actions brought against us could significantly damage our reputation and
future business and have a material adverse effect on the Company. Numerous federal
and state privacy and security laws and regulations, including the Federal Health
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 (HIPAA), as amended by the
Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health Act (HITECH),
governs the collection, dissemination, security, use and disclosure of patients’
individually identifiable health information. This as well as initiatives at the state
levels address patient and customer privacy concerns and the security of certain kinds
of sensitive personal information that healthcare and other businesses may come into
possession of. The new federal legislation extensively regulates the use and disclosure
of individually identifiable health-related information and the security and
standardization of electronically maintained or transmitted health-related
information. We do not yet know the total financial or other impact of these laws and
regulations on our business. Compliance with these laws and regulations will likely
require us to spend significant monies which could negatively impact our financial
results. Additionally, if we fail to comply with the privacy laws and their regulations,
we could suffer civil penalties and criminal penalties for certain violations. In
addition, we will continue to remain subject to any applicable state laws which are
more restrictive than the federal privacy law and regulations. These privacy laws vary
by state and impose additional penalties. We have determined that activities we
intend to engage in will cause us to be covered by one or more of these privacy laws
and corresponding regulations, and as such, we have implemented privacy and
security policies and procedures to comply with the applicable laws and regulations.
Our Company is in compliance with all applicable material aspects of HIPAA, as
amended, and applicable state privacy and security requirements. However, we cannot
provide any assurance that governmental authorities will find that our business



practices comply with current or future administrative or judicial interpretations of
these laws and regulations. Sanctions for failure to comply with these federal and state
laws and regulations include significant civil and criminal penalties. Such sanctions
could adversely impact our revenues, profit margins, profitability, operating cash flow
and results of operations. The federal government has made a policy decision to
significantly increase the financial resources allocated to enforcing the health care
fraud and abuse laws. Private insurers and various state enforcement agencies also
have increased their level of scrutiny of health care claims in an effort to identify and
prosecute fraudulent and abusive practices in the health care area. These investigative
and enforcement efforts could result in investigations or inquiries and other actions.
If the Company was ever the subject of such inquiries or investigations, it would be
time-consuming and costly to us and could disrupt our day-to-day operations for a
period of time and could have a material adverse effect on the Company. The
provisions of HIPAA criminalize situations that were handled exclusively civilly
through repayments of overpayments, offsets and fines by creating new federal health
care fraud crimes. Further, as with the federal laws, general state criminal laws may be
used to prosecute health care fraud and abuse. We believe our business arrangements
and practices currently comply with existing health care fraud law. However, a
violation could subject us to penalties, fines and/or possible future exclusion from
Medicare or Medicaid. Such sanctions could significantly reduce our revenues and
profits and have a material adverse effect on the Company. The taxes imposed by the
federal legislation and the government’s role in the U.S. healthcare industry may
result in decreased profits to us, lower reimbursements by payers for our products and
reduced medical procedure volumes, all of which may adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations, possibly materially.

If a natural or man-made disaster strikes our manufacturing facility, we may be
unable to manufacture our product for a substantial amount of time, which could
cause our sales to decline and adversely affect our business.

We principally rely on our manufacturing facility in San Antonio, Texas for the
manufacture of our product. This facility may be affected by natural or man-made
disasters. This facility and the manufacturing equipment we use to produce our
product would be difficult to replace and could require substantial time to repair or
replace. In the event our facility was affected by a disaster, we would be forced to rely
on third-party manufacturers. However, third-party manufacturers may not be
available or they may be unable to produce our product on the schedule or to the
specifications we require.

Our results and profitability may be adversely affected by product returns, rental
credits and uncollectible accounts receivable.

Qur results and profitability may be adversely affected if we have product returns,
rental credits or uncollectible accounts receivable. Subject to certain restrictions and
our approval, suppliers may return our product and receive a rental credit if the
product does not perform as expected. If we have a substantial number of these
returns and credits, it could adversely impact our profitability. Furthermore, if we
have substantial uncollectible accounts receivable, this could adversely impact our
profitability.



The Company may be unable to execute successfully its intellectual property strategy.
The Company has filed a Patent Applications in the United States and through the
Patent Cooperation Treaty Patent Applications in the United States, Australia,
Canada, China, European Union, and Japan. There are no assurances that the Company
will receive U.S. or Foreign Patents and, as a result, our business may be materially
harmed. The Company considers patent protection of its technology to be critical to
its business prospects. Our ability to compete effectively will depend on our ability to
maintain the proprietary nature of our intellectual property. There can be no
assurance that any patent applications which may be filed and assigned to the
Company will result in a patent issuance, that any patents which may be issued will
result in significant competitive advantages, or that challenges will not be instituted
against the validity or enforceability of any patent which may be licensed by the
Company or, if instituted, that such challenges will not be successful. The loss of any
proprietary rights which may be protected or protectable under any of the foregoing
future intellectual property safeguards may result in the loss of a competitive
advantage over present or potential competitors. We believe that our technology is
not subject to any infringement actions based upon the patents of any third parties;
however, our technology may in the future be found to infringe upon the rights of
others. Others may assert infringement claims against us, and if we should be found
to infringe upon their patents, or otherwise impermissibly utilize their intellectual
property, our ability to continue to use our technology or the licensed technology
could be materially restricted or prohibited. If this event occurs, we may be required
to obtain licenses from the holders of this intellectual property, enter into royalty
agreements, or redesign our products so as not to utilize this intellectual property,
each of which may prove to be uneconomical or otherwise impossible. Licenses or
royalty agreements required in order for us to use this technology may not be
available on terms acceptable to us, or at all. These claims could result in litigation,
which could materially adversely affect our business, prospects, financial condition,
and results of operations. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that others will not
independently develop similar or more advanced technologies, design around aspects
of the Company’s licensed technology or duplicate the Company’s trade secrets. To
the extent the Company utilizes processes, technology or equipment that constitute
trade secrets under applicable laws, the Company must implement appropriate levels
of security for those trade secrets to secure the protection of such laws. There can be
no assurance that the Company has implemented, or will implement, such levels of
security for said trade secrets. The future operations of the Company may be subject
to claims and potential litigation arising from alleged infringement of patents,
trademarks, trade secrets or copyrights owned by third parties. Within the
biotechnology industry, established companies have actively pursued such
infringement claims and have initiated claims and litigation that have made the entry
of competitive products more difficult. There can be no assurance that the Company
will not experience such claims or litigation initiated by existing, better-funded
competitors. Resisting such claims, litigation and court-ordered injunctions may
prevent the Company from bringing new products to market, and the resulting loss of
revenues and expenses of litigation may substantially affect the ability of the
Company to meet its expenses and continue operations. The Company may decide not



to take additional steps to secure its rights in certain copyrights, trademarks and/or
patents to which it may be entitled. Failure to do so mav reduce the access of the
Company to the courts and in recoverable damages to which it may be entitled in the
event of a violation of the Company’s proprietary and intellectual rights by third
parties, and in the case of copyrights, to certain remedies of statutory damages and
attorneys’ fees. Similarly, the failure to seek protections of any patentable materials to
which the Company may be entitled may result in loss of patent protection should a
third party copy the patentable technology or process. The loss of any proprietary
rights which are protectable under any of the foregoing intellectual property
safeguards may result in the loss of a competitive advantage over present or potential
competitors, with a resulting decrease in the profitability for the Company. There is no
guarantee that such a loss of competitive advantage could be remedied or overcome
by the Company at a price which the Company would be willing or able to pay.

The Company may be unable to successtully execute and manage its growth strategy.
The Company may be unable to successfully execute its growth strategy and, as a
result, its business may be materially affected. Our business plan will, if successfully
implemented, result in the rapid expansion of our business on a widespread basis.
Such expansion of our operations may place a significant strain on our management,
financial and other resources. Our ability to manage future growth will depend upon
our ability to monitor operations, control costs, maintain regulatory compliance,
maintain effective quality controls and significantly expand our internal management
and technical, information and accounting systems, and to attract, assimilate and
retain additional qualified personnel.

The significant competition in the wound care medical products industry could cause
the Company to reduce prices or not execute its growth strategy.

The wound care medical products industry is highly competitive. The Company
intends to position the TransCu O2 device as a lower cost, easier-to-use alternative to
the higher-priced, standard of care negative pressure wound therapy devices. In
addition, the Company intends to position TransCu O2 as a device that can treat more
wound types and more patients. There are no assurances that the competitors will not
significantly lower pricing and/or cause third-party payors to lower reimbursement
rates. To compete successfully, the Company may be required to reduce prices,
increase operating costs or take other measures that could have an adverse effect on
its financial condition, results of operations, margins and cash flow. This competition
could impair the Company’s ability to attract and retain business.

The success of our product depends greatly on our relationships with suppliers who
sell and healthcare providers who use our products, and our failure to maintain these
relationships could adversely affect our business.

Acceptance of our product depends on educating the potential purchasers and users of
wound care products as to the perceived distinctive characteristics and benefits,
clinical efficacy and cost- effectiveness of our product compared to competing
products in the wound care market. Additionally, acceptance and use of our product
depends on training healthcare professionals and suppliers in the proper use and
application of our product. Our failure to do this properly or our failure to maintain



these relationships and develop an understanding of the efficacy and benefits of our
product within the healthcare industry could result in the inability to successfully
market our product, which may adversely affect our sales and profitability. Our future
growth and success depends on creating broad awareness and acceptance, and,
ultimately, use or purchase of our products by physicians, patients, suppliers, GPOs
and pavyors. This will require substantial marketing and educational efforts, which
could be costly and may not be successful. The target customers who decide to utilize
our product may not adopt this technology or may adopt it at a rate that is slower than
desired. In addition, potential customers who decide to utilize our product may later
choose to purchase competitors’ products. Important facts that will affect our ability
to attain broad market acceptance of our product include: » The real or perceived
safety and efficacy of our product; = The real or perceived benefits of our product; =
Doctor and/or patient awareness and acceptance of our product;  Coverage of, and
reimbursement for, our products by governmental and third party payors; and »
Market perception of our ability to continue to grow our business and develop
enhancements or new products. If we fail to obtain an adequate level of
reimbursement from payors for our product, there may be no commercially viable
market for our product or the marketplace may be much smaller than expected.
Additionally, failure of our product to gain broad market acceptance could cause our
revenues to decline and our business to suffer. Such failures could have a material
adverse effect on the Company.

Current economic instability in the U.S. and internationally could adversely affect our
business.

Financial markets and the economies in the U.S. and various foreign jurisdictions have
experienced volatility and disruption, and these conditions could become worse and
not improve. These conditions have resulted in diminished liquidity and credit
availability in the market, which could impair our ability to access capital or otherwise
adversely affect our business. In the event the recent economic downturn continues, it
may create downward pressure on the pricing and/or reimbursement of our product,
affect our accounts receivable, slow the adoption of our product by payors and others
in the healthcare market, and adversely affect our customers, causing them to reduce
their spending. Any of these conditions could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial position, and results of operations.

Loss of key personnel could adversely affect our business.

The Company’s future in part depends on its ability to attract and retain highly
qualified directors, executive officers and other employees. The Company’s executive
officers have executed employment agreements with the Company; however, there
can be no assurance that the Company will be able to attract and retain highly
qualified persons for such positions in the future. The loss of key management
personnel could have a material adverse effect on the Company.

The Company requires a significant amount of cash to continue its business plan.
The Company's operations, including product manufacturing and organizational
infrastructure, will consume substantial amounts of capital. The Company expects
capital and operating expenditures to increase over the next several yvears as it



executes its business plan. The Company may require additional funding to expand
the manufacturing process, build a rental fleet and assemble an organizational
infrastructure. Furthermore, we may require additional capital for research and
development, compliance efforts, efforts to obtain and/or maintain Medicare
reimbursement, and protection of our proprietary rights. When the Company seeks
additional financing, no assurance can be given that such additional financing will be
available when needed, or that, if available, such financing will be obtained on terms
acceptable to the Company. The Company's inability to obtain sufficient funds from
operations and external sources may adversely affect the Company’s business,
prospects, financial condition and results of operations.

We expect operating losses, cost overruns, and financing uncertainties.

We have a history of losses and can provide no assurance as to our future operating
results. Eventual profitability will depend on our success in manufacturing and
marketing our product and obtaining reimbursement from pavyors. We have
experienced net losses and negative cash flows from operating activities since
inception and expect such losses and negative cash flows to continue in the
foreseeable future. There is no assurance that such losses will not be in an amount and
for a duration which will exceed the Company’s projections. The Company may
require additional funding to expand the manufacturing process, increase its rental
fleet and organizational infrastructure. No assurance can be given that any such
financing will become available or if available, that it would be on terms favorable to
the Company. If available such financing may result in the imposition of restrictions
on the future borrowings and operating policies. If financing is unavailable, then we
may become unable to continue our development or remain in business.
Consequently, you should be prepared to lose your entire investment in the Company.
Forward-looking statements and discussions of the business environment and
investment strategy of the Company provided to you (e.g., with respect to financial
markets, business opportunities, demand, investment pipeline and other conditions)
are subject to the ongoing novel coronavirus outbreak ("COVID-19"). The full impact
of COVID-19 is particularly uncertain and difficult to predict, therefore such forward-
looking statements do not reflect its ultimate potential effects, which may
substantially and adversely impact the company’s execution of its strategy.

Incurring substantial amounts of debt could adversely affect our business.

The Company may utilize a leveraged capital structure to, among other things, fund
its larger rental fleet of TransCu O2 devices. As a result, the Company may, in the
future, be subject to the risks normally associated with debt financing, including, (i)
the risk that cash flow from operations will be insufficient to meet required payments
of principal and interest, (ii) the risk that future debt (which will not have been fully
amortized at maturity) may not be refinanced or that the terms of such refinancing
will not be as favorable to the Company, and (iii) the risk that necessary capital
expenditures may not be financed on favorable terms or at all. The Company may
incur indebtedness in the future that also bears interest at a variable rate or may be
required to refinance its debt at higher rates. By its very nature, a variable interest rate
will move up or down based on changes in the economy and other factors, all of which
are beyond the control of the Company. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that



such interest rates will not rise significantly and, consequently, that the Company will
not be required to pay more interest than it may have anticipated. A significant
increase in market interest rates in the future could jeopardize the Company's ability
to pay required debt service on future loans and could possibly result in default and/or
foreclosure. Various credit facilities or other debt obligations may require the
Company to comply with a number of financial and other covenants on an ongoing
basis. Failure to comply with such covenants may limit the Company’s ability to
borrow funds or may cause a default under its then-existing indebtedness.

The Company’s liguidity may not be sufficient to pay its expenses.

The Company intends to maintain sufficient liquidity to pay fixed expenses, such as
rent and personnel costs. However, it is possible in certain scenarios (such as a
significant decrease in revenue) that the Company’s liquidity will not be adequate to
pay its fixed costs.

We may face uncertainties in manufacturing.

QOur ability to commercialize our product depends, in part, on our ability to
manufacture our products at a competitive cost and in accordance with current Good
Manufacturing Practices (“¢cGMP”™) and other regulatory requirements. We anticipate
that we will depend on collaborative partners for the manufacturing of certain
components of our product for commercialization. If we are not able to obtain
contract manufacturing of such components on commercially reasonable terms, we
may not be able to complete commercialization of our product.

We may be subject to costly litigation and damaging liability claims.

Although we have taken what we believe to be appropriate precautions, our business
exposes us to many liability risks and contractual disputes, which are inherent in the
development, testing, manufacturing and renting of medical devices. We face an
inherent business risk of exposure to product liability claims in the event that the use
of our product is alleged to have resulted in adverse effects. If there are any product
liability claims, our business could be adversely affected. While we have product
liability and officers and directors insurance, there can be no assurance that such
insurance is in amounts sufficient to protect us against potential liabilities.
Furthermore, even if we are successful in defending against any liability claims, such
claims could nevertheless distract our management, result in substantial costs, harm
our reputation, adversely affect the sales of our product and otherwise harm our
business and results of operations. We maintain product liability insurance with
coverage we believe to be adequate and are not currently aware of any product liability
claims. We cannot assure you that any liability claims made against us will not exceed
the coverage limit of such policy or that such insurance will continue to be available
on commercially reasonable terms or at all. Additionally, we are subject to the risk
that our insurers will exclude our coverage claim for any reason or that our insurers
may become insolvent. If we do not or cannot maintain sufficient liability insurance,
our ability to market our product may be significantly impaired. We may also be
subject to lawsuits or proceedings in the future by government entities or private
parties arising from our product, business methods or other activities. Except in
certain limited circumstances, our expenses and liabilities arising from any suit shall



be borne by the Company.

We are subject to numerous laws and regulations governing the healthcare industry,
and non-compliance with such laws, as well as changes in such laws or future
interpretations of such laws, could reduce demand for and limit our ability to
distribute our product and could cause us to incur significance compliance costs.
There are widespread legislative efforts to control health care costs in the United
States and abroad, which we expect will continue in the future. Compliance with
applicable regulations imposes significant costs and expenses of our operations. If we
fail to comply with applicable regulations, we could be subject to enforcement
sanctions, our promotional practices may be restricted, and our marketed product
could be subject to recall or otherwise impacted. In addition, regulations, such as
HIPAA, that regulate the way we do our business will result in increased compliance
costs for the Company. The U.S. government has launched various initiatives that
target particular industries or markets and particular regulation compliance. For
example, the United States Department of Justice and the Office of the Inspector
General of the United States Department of Health and Human Services have had
enforcement initiatives which specifically target the long-term care, home health and
DME industries. Sanctions for violating these laws include criminal penalties and civil
sanctions, including fines and penalties, and possible exclusion from the Medicare,
Medicaid and other federal health care programs. Although we believe our business
arrangements currently comply with federal and state fraud and abuse laws, our
practices may be challenged under these laws in the future, and the Company or its
suppliers or customers could be the focus of an investigation or similar initiative due
its/their activities in the DME market. Such investigations or other initiatives could be
costly and distracting and could have an adverse effect on the Company. Furthermore,
to comply with the various laws and regulations applicable to our operations, we may
need to institute a corporate compliance program, which can be costly to design and
implement.

You may not be able to sell your Shares.

The shares of Common Stock offered hereby have not been registered under the
Securities Act and may not be resold unless registered or unless we have received an
opinion of counsel, reasonably satisfactory to us, stating that an exemption from
registration is available. Even if the Common Stock is registered under the Securities
Act or is exempt from registration, state securities laws may prohibit or limit its
transferability in some jurisdictions. Investors have no right to require, and we have
no current intent of effecting, registration of our Common Stock. There is no existing
market for the Common Stock, and we do not expect any such market to develop.
Transferability of the Common Stock also may be affected by restrictions on resale
imposed by the laws of some states. Such factors might also limit the price one could
obtain for sale of his or her Common Stock, assuming a transfer could be arranged.
You should be prepared to hold your Common Stock indefinitely.

The value of the Shares after the Offering may be lower than the subscription price.
The subscription price for the Shares in this Offering was not established in a
competitive market. The subscription price for the Shares in this Offering is not



necessarily related to assets, book value, historic results of operations, projected
future earnings or other established criteria of value, and may not be indicative of the
fair value of the Shares. The price of the Shares that will prevail in any market that
may develop sometime in the future following this Offering may be higher or lower
than the subscription price.

The Company will have broad discretion in using the proceeds from this Offering.

The Company will have broad discretion in determining the specific uses of the
proceeds. The Subscribers will not have the opportunity to evaluate, influence or
control the economic, financial or other information on which the Company bases its
decisions on how to use the proceeds for working capital or otherwise or its decision
on how to use the proceeds. Because of the number and variability of factors that
determine our use of the net proceeds of the Offering, we cannot assure that such uses
will not vary from the Company’s current intentions or that stockholders will agree
with the uses it has chosen.

Subscribers will incur immediate and substantial dilution in net tangible book value
per share.

The portion of the subscription price of the Shares allocable to each Share is
substantially higher than the current net tangible book value per Share. Subscribers
may incur additional dilution if holders of stock options, warrants or convertible
notes, subsequently granted and/or issued, exercise such options or warrants to
purchase Shares or convert such notes into Shares.

The Offering price may not be indicative of value.

The Offering price of the Shares has been determined by the Board without
negotiation and is based primarily upon our anticipated startup costs and anticipated
operating deficits prior to break-even. The Offering price of the Shares may not be
indicative of their value or the value of the Company. No assurance is or can be given
that the Common Stock could be sold for the Offering price or for any amount.

Our financial projections may not be accurate.

Any projections and related assumptions provided to you were based on information
about circumstances and conditions existing as of the date set forth therein. The
projections and estimated financial results set forth herein are based on estimates and
assumptions that are inherently uncertain and, though considered reasonable by the
Company, are subject to significant business, economic, and competitive uncertainties
and contingencies, all of which are difficult to predict and many of which are beyond
the control of the Company. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that the projected
results will be realized or that actual results will not be significantly lower than
projected. The Company does not intend to update the projections. The inherent
uncertainties in results increase materially for years closer to the end of the projected
period. Neither the Company nor any other person or entity assumes any
responsibility for the accuracy or validity of the projections.

We do not expect to pay dividends.
The Company presently intends to retain future earnings, if any, to finance the



operation, development and expansion of its business and does not expect to pay any
cash dividends in the foreseeable future. Investors should not purchase the Common
Stock with the expectation of receiving cash dividends.

We have not provided tax advice in relation to this Offering.

Upon the sale or exchange of the Common Stock, an investor generally will recognize
capital gain or loss equal to the difference between the amount of cash and fair market
value of any other property received and the investor’s adjusted tax basis in the
Common Stock. Such capital gain or loss will generally be long-term capital gain or
loss if the investor’s holding period for the Common Stock is more than one year at
the time of the sale or exchange. Investors should consult their tax advisors with
respect to the federal income and all other tax consequences of the purchase
ownership and disposition of the Common Stock. Additionally, other aspects of
holding the Common Stock may have tax consequences.

Our certificate of incorporation, our by-laws and Delaware law contain provisions that
could discourage, delay or prevent a change in control or management of the
Company.

QOur certificate of incorporation, our by-laws and Delaware law contain provisions
which could discourage, delay, or prevent a third party from acquiring shares of our
Common Stock or replacing members of our Board. These provisions include: »
Authorization of the issuance of preferred stock, the terms of which may be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board; » Provisions giving the Board sole
power to set the number of directors; « Authorization for our Board to adopt, amend
or repeal our by-laws (subject to the right of our stockholders to adopt, amend or
repeal the amended and restated by- laws with the approval of at least a majority of
our outstanding common shares); and » Limitations on the ability of stockholders to
call special meetings of stockholders to « those meetings requested by holders of at
least forty percent (40%) of the votes at that meeting.

Our organizational documents provide for indemnification.

The Company’s officers, directors, emplovyees, designees, and nominees are, subject to
certain conditions, indemnified by the Company against any and all liabilities related
to the Company to the maximum extent permitted by law. Such liabilities include
liabilities under the Securities Act to the extent permitted by law. To the extent
indemnification provisions of the certificate of incorporation or bylaws are invoked,
the assets of the Company could be reduced.

ADDITIONAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES NOT PRESENTLY KNOWN MAY EXIST.
In addition to the risks specifically identified in these Risk Factors , we may face
additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to the Company or that we
currently deem immaterial but which may later impair the Company’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Number of Type of

Stockholder Name Securities Security |[Percentage
Owned Owned
Van G Miller Revocable Trust (Trustees are Common
James Walsh Jr., John Deery, Jr. and Dave 10,775,293 21.7%
: Stock
Kazynski)
: C
Van G Miller Estate 8,302,906 ommon - 16.72%
Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note, July 1st
2022 Convertible Note, March 31st 2022 Convertible Promissory Note, Jan 7th 2022
Convertible Promissory Note, April 2nd 2021 Convertible Promissory Note, Aug 18th
2021 Note, August 2019 convertible note, and Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock. As
part of the Regulation Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 776,728
of Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock.

Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 60,000,000 with a total of 53,141,493
outstanding.

Voting Rights
One vote per share.
Material Rights

The total amount outstanding includes 113,085 shares to be issued pursuant to
outstanding warrants.

The total amount outstanding includes 6,005,811 shares to be issued pursuant to stock
options issued.

The total amount outstanding includes an estimated 4,678,862 shares to be issued
pursuant to convertible debt conversion at an equity financing round of $1.59 per
share. Value of convertible debt and interest as of 11,/2/2022 $7,439,391.

Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note




The security will convert into See material rights below for complete information and
the terms of the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $503,929.54

Maturity Date: October 03, 2024

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: See material rights below for complete information

Material Rights
Interest calculated up to 11/2/:2022

1. MATURITY DATE; APPLICATION OF PAYMENTS. Unless converted in accordance
with its terms, the entire outstanding principal balance and all unpaid accrued
interest and other amounts payable under this Convertible Promissory Note (this
“Note™) shall be fully due and pavable upon demand given by Holder on or after the
Maturity Date subject to Payor’s ability to convert pursuant to Section 2(b); provided,
however, that upon an Event of Default, all such outstanding amounts shall be fully
due and payable immediately; and further provided, however, that Holder may elect to
extend the Maturity Date for an additional six (6) months by written notice to the
Payor at least ten (10) days prior to the Maturity Date. All payments of interest and
principal shall be in lawful money of the United States of America. All payments shall
be applied first to any late fees or costs of collection, next to accrued interest, and
thereafter to principal.

2. CONVERSION.

(a) Conversion on Qualifying Financing. In the event that Payor issues and sells shares
of its common stock, preferred stock or other equity securities (the “Equity
Securities”) to investors (the “Investors”) on or before the Maturity Date (as the same
may be extended by the Holder) with total proceeds to the Payor of not less than
$3,000,000.00 (a “Qualifying Financing™), then the total outstanding principal balance
and all accrued interest owing under this Note shall convert into such security at a
conversion price equal to the price per share paid by the Investors purchasing the
securities in the Qualifying Financing (“Qualifying Financing Conversion Price™) on
the same terms and conditions as given to the Investors (the “Conversion”). The
outstanding principal balance and all accrued interest owing under this Note shall be
converted into the applicable Equity Securities upon the closing of such Qualifying
Financing, without any further action by the Holder and whether or not this Note is
surrendered to Payor or its transfer agent.

(b) Conversion at or prior to Maturity. At any time on or prior to the Maturity Date, if
the Payor has not completed a Qualifying Financing, the Holder may elect to convert,
effective as of the tenth (10th) business day following written notice to Payor, the
total outstanding principal balance and all accrued interest owing under this Note
into common stock of the Payor ("Common Stock™) at a conversion price equal to



$1.00 per share (“Default Price” and together with the Qualifying Financing
Conversion Price, referred to herein as applicable as the “Conversion Price™) without
any further action by the Holder and whether or not this Note is surrendered to Payor
or its transfer agent.

3. PREPAYMENT PERMITTED. This Note may be prepaid in whole or in part at any
time without penalty. Any such prepayment amount shall be applied first, to the
payment of interest accrued on the portion of this Note so prepaid and second, if the
amount of the prepayment exceeds the amount of such accrued interest, to the
payment of principal of this Note. Any amounts repaid or prepaid may not be
reborrowed.

July 1st 2022 Convertible Note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the July 1st 2022 Convertible Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $509,742.42

Maturity Date: June 30, 2024

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated up to 11/2/2022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete
information.

March 31st 2022 Convertible Promissory Note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the March 31st 2022 Convertible Promissory Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,035,059.40

Maturity Date: March 30, 2024

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated up to 11/2/2022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete



information.
Jan 7th 2022 Convertible Promissory Note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the Jan 7th 2022 Convertible Promissory Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,048,5855.89

Maturity Date: January 06, 2024

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated up to 11/2/2022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete
information.

April 2nd 2021 Convertible Promissory Note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the April 2nd 2021 Convertible Promissory Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,096,769.22

Maturity Date: March 31, 2023

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated as of 1122022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete
information.

Aug 18th 2021 Note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the Aug 18th 2021 Note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,072,887.30
Maturity Date: August 17, 2023
Interest Rate: 6.0%



Discount Rate: %
Valuation Cap: None
Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated up to 11/2/2022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete
information.

August 2019 convertible note

The security will convert into Same as oct 4th 2022 convertible note and the terms of
the August 2019 convertible note are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2,172,144.35

Maturity Date: June 30, 2023

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Discount Rate: %

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Same as Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note

Material Rights
Interest calculated as of 11/2/2022

The material rights of this note are identical to the Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note.
Please see the material rights section of Oct 4th 2022 Convertible Note for complete
information.

Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 5,000,000 with a total of 0 outstanding.
Voting Rights

There are no voting rights associated with Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock.
Material Rights

Dividends The Corporation shall not declare, pay or set aside any dividends on shares
of any other class or series of capital stock of the Corporation unless the holders of the
Preferred Stock then outstanding shall first receive, or simultaneously receive, a
dividend on each outstanding share of Preferred Stock. See exhibit F for additional
information.

Liquidation In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liguidation, dissolution or
winding up, the consideration received by the Corporation together with any other




assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its stockholders shall be
distributed among the holders of the shares of Preferred Stock and common stock. See
exhibit F for additional information.

Drag Along Holders of Preferred Shares are subject to a drag along provision in the
event that a majority of the shareholders effect a sale of or receive a bona fide offer
from an independent third party to purchase the Corporation. See exhibit F for
additional information.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder of Series A Non-Voting Preferred Stock of the company, you will
have limited rights in regards to the corporate actions of the company, including
additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
company or its significant assets, or company transactions with related parties.
Further, investors in this offering may have rights less than those of other investors,
and will have limited influence on the corporate actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
¢ [nanIPO;
e To the company;
e To an accredited investor; and

e To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the



family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities

We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Name: Common Stock
Type of security sold: Equity
Final amount sold: $500,000.00
Number of Securities Sold: 500,000
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales & Marketing, R&D
Date: January 20, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,800,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: August 12, 2019
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: August 18, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: April 02, 2021
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: January 07, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: March 31, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

¢ Type of security sold: Convertible Note



Final amount sold: $500,000.00

Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: July 01, 2022

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $500,000.00
Use of proceeds: Operations, Sales and Marketing, R&D
Date: October 04, 2022
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:
Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2021 was $2,130,220, compared to fiscal year 2020 revenue of
$1,450,379. This 46% increase in total company sales was primarily due to a focus on
our higher margin New York Managed Medicaid market which was up 132%. We
believe the New York Managed Medicaid market can get us to a position where the
company will be cash flow positive. As a result, we spent the vast majority of our
marketing and sales efforts in this state in 2021. At the same time we continue to
pursue Medicare and other national insurance coverage of our proprietary OxyGeni
System. Current year results have seen improvements in all areas, with twelve months
results in NY ending in June 2022 increasing to 148% of the previous 12 month period
and our VA and Indian Health sales returning to near pre-pandemic levels.

Cost of sales

The company’s Cost of Sales consists of consumables inventory including OxySpur
Oxygen Diffusion Dressings, manufacturing & packaging supplies as well as
sterilization, shipping, device repairs, and associated labor. Cost of sales in 2021 was



$640,373, an increase of approximately $293,412, from costs of $346,961 in fiscal year
2020. Cost of sales as a percentage of revenues increased from 24% in 2020 to 30% in
2021, This increase was largely due to upgrading our aging TransCu O2 devices to the
newer, better functioning OxyGeni devices.

Gross margins

2021 gross profit increased by $386,429 over 2020 gross profit and gross margins as a

percentage of revenues decreased from 76% in 2020 to 70% in 2021. This 6% decrease
in margin was temporary as it mostly related to investments in our OxyGeni device
fleet and our capacity to treat a larger number of patients.

Expenses

The Company’s expenses consist of, among other things, compensation and benefits,
marketing and sales expenses, fees for professional services and intellectual property,
research and development expenses. Expenses in 2021 increased $285,750 from 2020.
Approximately $245,000 of this increase was due to increased selling costs of which
171K related to sales commissions and 74K related to travel, trade shows, webinars &
meeting expenses. The remaining $40,000 of increased expense was used toward the
Company’s national coverage strategy.

Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the growth stage and revenue generating. We are of the
opinion the historical cash flows will be indicative of the revenue and cash flows
expected for the future since we have been able to demonstrate these trends for the
past two years. Past cash was primarily generated through sales to managed medicaid,
VA & IHS patients. Qur goal is to increase penetration into these markets while
expanding into our rapidly growing aesthetics/cosmetics cash market, which has
shown rapid growth in the last couple of years.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of October 4th, 2022, the Company has capital resources available in the form of
$£632,000 cash on hand and an accounts receivable balance of $1,600,000.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital

resources available?)
We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations.

These funds are required to support sales growth, inventory purchases and new



product development.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, 87% will be made up of funds
raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate for 5 months. This is based on a current forecasted cash collection
and slow reduction in monthly burn rate from ~$200k to under $100k for expenses
related to inventory, R&D and sales and marketing.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate into the foreseeable future. This is based on our forecast
projections showing the company turning cash flow positive around the end of 2023.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company is not contemplating additional future sources of capital
since it is believed that none will be needed.

Indebtedness

¢ Creditor: VGM Group, Inc.
Amount Owed: $2,172,144.35
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: June 30, 2023
VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell common stock to investors of not less than $3,000,000.

e Creditor: VGM Group, Inc



Amount Owed: $1,096,769.22

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: March 31, 2023

VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell common stock to investors of not less than $3,000,000.

Creditor: VGM Group, Inc

Amount Owed: $1,072,887.30

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: August 17, 2023

VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell common stock to investors of not less than $3,000,000.

Creditor: VGM Group, Inc.

Amount Owed: $623,785.05

Interest Rate: 9.0%

Maturity Date: June 30, 2023

The Company has a revolving line of credit with VGM Group, Inc. of $500,000,
with interest at 9.00% maturing June 30, 2023. The full amount of the line was
extended to the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Creditor: Economic Injury Disaster Loan

Amount Owed: $164,198.03

Interest Rate: 3.75%

Maturity Date: May 21, 2050

The Company also received a Paycheck Protection Program loan. The Company
received funding of $260,300 under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) as
part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act),
administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA). The Company
used the proceeds for payroll costs and business utility payments. On March 30,
2021, the Company received notification that the PPP loan was forgiven, and it
was recognized as PPP loan forgiveness in other income on statement of
operations and in operating activities in cash flows in 2021.

Creditor: VGM Group Inc.

Amount Owed: $1,048,855.89

Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: January 07, 2024

VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell

Creditor: VGM Group Inc.
Amount Owed: $1,035,059.40



Interest Rate: 6.0%

Maturity Date: March 30, 2024

VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell

¢ Creditor: VGM Group Inc.
Amount Owed: $509,745.42
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: June 30, 2024
VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the
Company sell

e Creditor: VGM Group Inc.
Amount Owed: $503,929.54
Interest Rate: 6.0%
Maturity Date: October 03, 2024
VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into commeon stock of the
Company at $1.00 per share prior to maturity if a qualifying financing has not
been completed. After maturity if a qualifying financing has not occurred VGM
Group can convert at .50 per share or in the event of a qualifying financing can
convert at an equivalent price per share

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: VGM Group, Inc
Names of 20% owners: Trustees are James Walsh Jr., John Deery, Jr. and Dave
Kazynski
Relationship to Company: 20%+ Owner
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: The Company has an agreement
with VGM Group, Inc (VGM), whereby VGM provides billing and marketing
services to the Company. The agreement is effective through December 31, 2024
with terms allowing any number of successive 5-year renewal periods. VGM is a
shareholder of the Company. Per the agreement, the Company provides a
discount to Group Members of VGM related to their product and pays an
administrative fee to VGM for their billing services.
Material Terms: In August 2019, the Company agreed to a $1,800,000 convertible
promissory note to VGM Group, Inc., a related party, with interest at 6.00% and
due on demand on or after June 30, 2023. In 2021, the Company also agreed to
two additional convertible promissory notes with VGM Group for $1,000,000
each, with interest at 6.00%, both secured through conversion features. One of
these notes is due on demand on or after March 31, 2023, and the other due on
August 17, 2023. VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common
stock of the Company at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share



should the Company sell common stock to investors of not less than $3,000,000.
The Company has a revolving line of credit with VGM Group, Inc. of $500,000),
with interest at 9.00% maturing June 30, 2023, The full amount of the line was
extended to the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Valuation

Pre-Money Valuation: $78,442,740.32
Valuation Details:

The pre-money valuation is based on a comparable analysis to medical device
companies possessing a market-disrupting technology with similar patent portfolios
and at a similar stage in their growth. The closest comparable is OsteoBiologics, Inc.,
(OBI) which had trailing 12 month revenue of $3.3 million and was acquired for $72.5
million (21.9x). This company had a novel, resorbable implant for repair of bone and
cartilage, similar patent portfolio (in the US and internationally) and had sales in
North America and Europe. A significant portion of the current EO2Z management
team was part of the OBI team, including the CEO (Mark Niederauer), Director of
Operations (Jim Daley), Controller (Justin Cypert) and QA Manager (Joseph
Monosmith). Another comparable is Surpass Medical who developed a next-
generation flow diversion stent technology to treat brain aneurysms using a unique
mesh design and delivery system. Surpass Medical had slightly fewer patents, a
comparable revenue of just under $5 million and were acquired for $100 million with
an additional $35 million in milestone payments (20-27x). A third comparable is
Transfusion Technologies which developed a novel centrifuge technology for
processing human blood for transfusion to patients. They also had slightly fewer
patents with sales of approximately $0.8 million and were acquired for $34.6 million
(43.2x). Aside from comparable revenues and patent portfolios, what all four
companies have in common is a novel, disruptive technology that would change
medical practice. EO2’s system has the further advantage that it can be applied in
markets outside of its core chronic wound market, including acute wounds and
elective procedures. In addition to wound healing, EO2’s CDO therapy also has
demonstrated clinical advantages of reducing pain and scarring, which together are
unique and can be leveraged in these markets. The pre-money valuation of EO2 is
$79.1 million using the median comparable of 21.9x and trailing 12 month revenue of
$3.61 million through October 2022,

Our valuation is also based on the assumption that we can achieve our goals by
continuing to rapidly grow our penetration into large and growing markets,
capitalizing on our strong intellectual property portfolio with new products and
service offerings and leverage the experience of our team in these efforts. Our position
is unique in that we have a novel system for oxygenating skin and tissue to accelerate
healing, reduce scarring and reduce pain while enabling our customers (patients) to be
mobile and treated discreetly. We are targeting growth in three primary sectors,
surgical wounds, chronic wounds and aesthetic procedures, which together represent



a market in excess of $532B in the US alone. This market is growing annually at rates
ranging from 5% to 9%.

We have demonstrated robust growth in the key sectors of Managed Medicaid
insurance (148% growth rate) and Plastics/Aesthetics (>200% growth rate) in the last
two years and expect to accelerate our expansion into those markets. We have made
initial forays into the surgical incision market and will be releasing a custom solution
for these procedures this year. Our CDO therapy is uniquely positioned to address a
broad range of skin treatments, ranging from chronic wound such as ulcers, to surgical
incisions (both medically necessary and elective) to aesthetic procedures for
improving people’s appearance (i.e. Mommy Makeovers). Our team continues to
develop new solutions to address each of these segments.

We have the strongest patent portfolio in the emerging continuous oxygen therapy
market, with 7 patents issued or allowed in the US, an additional US patent pending
and over 30 international patents issued or pending. These patents provide protection
for cloud-based solutions to provide patient care and remote monitoring/support,
covering products which are currently being developed and validated for launch. This
strategy ties into the rapidly emerging telehealth market and positions us to be the
leader in remote patient treatment and monitoring of wounds.

Sources:

https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/us-wound-care-centers-
market

https://www.grandviewresearch.com/industry-analysis/cosmetic-surgery-procedure-
market

This valuation was calculated internally by the company without the use of any formal
independent third-party evaluation.

The pre-money valuation has been calculated on a fully diluted basis. The Company
currently only has Common Stock outstanding. In making this calculation, we have
assumed that all outstanding options, warrants, and other securities with a right to
acguire shares are exercised. This includes an estimated 4,678,862 shares to be issued

pursuant to convertible debt conversion at an eguity financing round of $1.59 per
share. Value of convertible debt and interest as of 11/2/2022 $§7,459,591.

In making this calculation we have not assumed that anyv shares reserved for issuance
under a stock plan are issued.

Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $14,998.47 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%



e StartEngine Platform Fees
94.5%

Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,234,997.52, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Platform Fees
1.0%
Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine

o Marketing
40.0%
Sales staff and support, trade shows and marketing campaigns.

e Research & Development
13.5%
Build and validation of next generation wound monitoring system.

e Operations
10.0%
Internal sales, billing and clinical support systems and staff.

e [nventory
50.0%
Increase inventory supply levels to meet sales growth targets.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the



report on its website no later than April 30 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at http://eo2.com
(www.eo2.com/annual-report).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates

Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/eo2
Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.
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With Yﬂu wambar of tha AICPA & TRCPA,
all the Way Reqistorad with Public Company

Accounting Ovarssght Board

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Electrochemical Oxvygen Concepts, Inc.
San Antonio, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc, which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders’ equity, and cash tlows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements,
A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries
of management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the Umited States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to traud or error.

Aecountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Sratements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Commuttee of the AICPA.
Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we
are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the
results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion,

We are required to be independent of Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements related to our review.

Accountant’s Conclusion
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

ADKFAC

ADKF, P.C.
San Antonio, Texas
August 15, 2022

MAIN OFFICE:
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2021 and 2020

ASSETS

Current Assets:
(Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, nei
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Rental Medical Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Net rental medical equipment

Fixed Assets:

Furniture and fixtures

Manutfacturing equipment

Computer equipment

Software

Leaschold improvements
Total fixed assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Net fixed assets

Total Assets

2021

72,823
1,024,322
335,056
33,803

2020

1,466,004

819,093
(724,606)

219,385
489,583
435,269

21,793

04,487

59,867
89,036
91,492
60,962
122,867

1,166,030

820,242
(661,422)

424,224
(265,252)

158,820

39,867
&6, 168
83,331
60,962
112,411

158,972

1,719,463

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.
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404,739
(252,361)

152,378

1,477,228



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2021 and 2020

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade
Accounts payable, related party
Insurance premium payable
Accrued expenses
Current portion of notes payable
Total current liabilities

Long-Term Liabilities:
Convertible related party note payable
Related party line of credit
MNotes pavable, long-term
Total long-term liabilities

Stockholders' Equity:

Preferred stock, $.01 par value; 5,000,000 shares
authorized, 0 shares issued and outstanding

Common stock, .01 par value; 45,000,000 shares
authorized, 38,602,879 and 38,102 879 1ssued
and outstanding

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated (deficit)
Total stockholders' equity (deficit]

Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

-3-

2021

2020

289,446
35,011
14,306

1,044,480
3,305

93,728
32,186
13,567
756,157
2,602

1,386,548

3,800,000
500,000
146,595

900,240

1,800,000
500,000
407,598

4,446,595

386,029
43,492,701

(47.992,410)

2,707,598

381,029
42,962,791

(45.474,430)

(4.113,680)

(2,130,610)

1,719,463

S

1,477,228



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Revenues:
Rental revenue
Sales
Total revenues

Cost of Revenues
Giross profit

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and payroll taxes
Professional fees
General and administrative
Selling expenses
Office expenses
Office rent
Depreciation
Amortization, other assets
Bad debts
Research and development

Total operating expenses

Operating {Loss)

Other Income (Expense):
Rental income
Other income
PPP loan forgiveness
Interest expense
Other expenses

Other income (expense), net

Net (Loss)

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

-d -

2021

585,597
1,544,623

2020

653,861
796,518

2,130,220

640,373

1,450,379

346,961

1,489,847

1,123,240
1,050,095
565,865
655,888
60,867
293,261
77,689

48,195
210,711

4,085.811

1,103,418

1,111,790
1,010,328
445,902
495,689
48,885
266,531
43.890
1.458
88,537
287,051

(2,595,964)

36,203

4,926

260,300
(221,995)
(1.450)

3,800,061

77,984

(2,696.643)
33,883
114,555

(142.871)
(1.618)

S (2,517.980)

3,949

$

(2.692,694)



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Balance at January 1, 2020

Share based compensation related to stock options
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net (loss) for the yvear

Balance at December 31, 2020
Share based compensation related to stock options

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net (loss) for the year

Balance at December 31, 2021

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

Total
Additional Stockholders'
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Shares Amount Capirtal (Deficit) ( Deficit)

37,102,879 ! 371,029 § 41,942,605 5 (42,781,736) 5 (468,102)

- - 30,186 - 30,186

1, OO0, 000 10,000 990,000 - 1, 000, OO
- - - (2,692,694) (2,692,6094)
35,102,879 381,029 42 962,791 (45,474 .430) (2,130,610)

- - 34,910 - 34,910

500,000 5,000 495,000 - SO0, 000
- - - (2,517.980) (2,517,980)
38,602,879 $ 386,029 $ 43492701 §  (47,992.410) §  (4,113.680)



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Operating Activities
Net loss
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) to net
cash (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization
MNoncash compensation expense
PPP loan forgiveness
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Net cash (used) by operating activities

Cashflows from investing activities
Purchases of rental medical equipment
Purchases of fixed assets

Net cash (used) by investing activities

Financing Activities
Receipt of PPP loan
Proceeds from long-term debt, third party
Proceeds from long-term debt, related party
Repayment of long-term debt, third party
Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of yea

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures
Interest paid in cash
Income taxes paid in cash

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

-6 -

2021

S (2,517,980

77,689

34,910
(260,300)

(534,739)
100,213
(12,010}
484,866

2020

(2,627,351)

(463)
(19,485)
(19,950)

25,143

2,000,000
(24,404)
500,000

2,500,739

(146,562)
219,385

5 72,823

(2,692,694)

43,890
3,614
30,186

(72,236)
74,548
21,344

227,286

(2,364,062)

(188,757)
(53,243)

(242,000

260,300
172,027
500,000
(17,066)
1,000,000

1,915,261

(690,801)
910,186

S

219,385



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Chrganization: Electrochemical Oxygen concepts, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the State of Delaware
on May 18th, 2007. The Company researches and develops advanced wound care technology and has developed a
proprietary technology called the OxyGeni System (formerly known as the TransCu 02 System), which consists of
the OxyGeni wound oxygenation and monitoring device, OxySpur oxygen diffusion dressings and associated
accessories. This technology aids in the healing process by providing a continuous supply of pure, humidified
oxygen directly to the affected tissue. The Company, through a vendor agreement with the VGM Group, makes
the unit available to VGM Group members and markets its technology to Veteran Affairs, Indian Health,
Plastics/Cosmetics, and Insurance providers.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is derived from the rental or sale of the OxyGeni System and sale of the OxySpur
oxygen diffusion dressings. Revenue is recognized when a performance obligation is complete, control is
transferred to the customer, pervasive evidence of a purchase or rental arrangement exists, price to buyer is
determinable, and collection 1s probable. Deductions from sales for discounts, if granted, are recorded as reductions
of revenues, and are provided for at the time of initial sale. Sales taxes billed are reported directly as a hiability to
the taxing authority and are not included in revenue,

Cash and Cash Eguivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits held by financial institutions
and temporary cash investments with a maturity of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable is reported at outstanding principal net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts, The allowance is determined by an account-by-account review as well as historical trends. Accounts are
charged off when collection efforts have failed, and the account is deemed uncollectible. The allowance totaled
$135,279 at December 31, 2021 and 591,084 at December 31, 2020. The Company normally does not charge

interest on accounts receivable. Accounts receivable at January 1, 2020, beginning of the year, totaled $417,347.

Inventories: Parts and supplies inventory is valued at lower of cost or net realizable value as determined using the
standard cost method.

Rental Eguipment: Rental equipment, consisting primarily of the OxyGem device, is stated at cost less
depreciation, calculated using the straight-line method over a useful life generally of three years. The cost of the
dressings in our device are expensed and not capitalized.

Fixed Assets: Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Additions, renewals, and betterments
are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is calculated using
accelerated and straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to fifteen
Years.

Other Assets: Other assets represent a patent and a domain name and are stated at cost, net of accumulated
amortization. Amortization is provided at amounts calculated to amortize the cost straight-line over 10 years.
Accumulated amortization totaled $30,688 at December 31, 2021 and 2020. Amortization expense totaled 53,614
for 2020 and was fully amortized as of December 31, 2020. All intangible and similar assets are evaluated for
impairment on an annual basis,

Share Based Compensation: The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
made to employees and directors, including grants of employee stock options, based on estimated fair values.
Stock-based compensation expense is based on the value of the portion of share-based payment awards that is
ultimately expected to vest during the year.

See independent accountant's review report.



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Income Taxes: The Company 1s taxed as a C corporation for federal income tax purposes. Deferred federal
income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and the tax basis
of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when
the differences reverse. The Company is subject to the Texas margin tax. Management i1s not aware of any tax
positions that would have a significant impact on its financial position. Its federal tax returns for the last four years
remain subject to examination.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $72,000 in 2021 and 542,000 in
2020,

Government Regulations: The Company is subject to federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of
materials into the environment. Management believes that its current practices and procedures for the control and
disposition of such wastes comply with applicable federal and state requirements.

Cancentrations of Risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of temporary cash investments. Company deposits with financial institutions on occasion may
exceed the FDIC insured amount.

Subsequent Events: Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through the date of the independent
accountant's review report,  Material subsequent events, if any, are disclosed in a separate footnote to these
financial statements,

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
labilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements: In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued a
new accounting pronouncement regarding lease accounting for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2021, A lessee will be required to recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for leases with lease
terms of more than 12 months. Management is currently evaluating the effect this pronouncement will have on the
financial statements and related disclosures.

In June 2016, the FASB issued Accounting Standard Update (ASU) No. 2016-13 Financial Instruments-Credit
Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Loses on financial Instruments which requires the application of a
current expected credit loss (CECL) impairment model to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including
trade accounts receivable. Under the CECL model, lifetime expected credit losses on such financial assets are
measured and recognized at each reporting date based on historical, current, and forecasted information.
Furthermore, financial assets with similar risk characteristics are analyzed on a collective basis. This ASU, as
amended, 1s effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2022 with early adoption permitted. Management
is currently evaluating the effect this pronouncement will have on the financial statements and related disclosures.

See independent accountant's review report.



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE B - GOING CONCERN

The Company has continued to report significant operating losses as its proprietary medical technology products
are developed and markets established.

In 2021, the Company received $500,000 for commeon stock and $2,000,000 in related party notes debt funding.
Subsequent to vear end, the Company continues to obtain additional funding through its capital campaign.
Management also expects revenues from sales of its proprietary products in 2022 to increase from 2021 levels.

NOTE C - INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following at December 31;

2021 2020
Raw materials $ 192,771 $ 313,460
Finished goods 121,139 111,361
Demo mmventory 21,146 10,174
Marketing materials - 274
Total inventories 5 335056 $ 435,269

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT

In August 2019, the Company agreed to a $1,800.,000 convertible promissory note to VGM Group, Inc., a related
party, with interest at 6.00% and due on demand on or after June 30, 2023, In 2021, the Company also agreed to
two additional convertible promissory notes with VGM Group for $1,000,000 ¢ach, with interest at 6.00%, both
secured through conversion features. One of these notes is due on demand on or after March 31, 2023, and the
other due on August 17, 2023, VGM Group has the option to convert the notes into common stock of the Company
at $1.00 per share or at an equivalent price per share should the Company sell common stock to investors of not

less than $3,000,000.

The Company has a revolving line of credit with VGM Group, Inc. of $5300,000, with interest at 9.00% maturing
Tune 30, 2023. The full amount of the line was extended to the Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020.

In 2020, the Company received an Economic Injury Disaster loan in the amount of $150,000, with interest at
3.75% maturing May 21, 205(. The Company also received a Paycheck Protection Program loan (see Note E).

See independent accountant's review report,



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT - continued

Maturities of long-term debt will require the following principal payments:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2022 s 3,305
2023 4,303,431
2024 3,562
2025 3.698
2026 3,839
Thereafter 132,065

S 4449900

NOTE E - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM

The Company received funding of $260,300 under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) as part of the
Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), administered by the U.S, Small Business
Administration (SBA). The Company used the proceeds for payroll costs and business utility payments. On March
30, 2021, the Company received notification that the PPP loan was forgiven, and it was recognized as PPP loan
forgiveness in other income on statement of operations and in operating activities in cash flows in 2021,

NOTE F - STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

The Company grants options to its employees under its Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan™). The Plan allows for the
grant of up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock to management, employees and other persons who provide
services to the Company. All options granted have a vesting schedule with a term of immediate to one year and
become fully exercisable based on other specific terms imposed at the date of grant,

The Company uses the Black-Sholes option-pricing method. The fair value for options 1s estimated at the date of
grant with the following weighted-average assumptions as of period end:;

Risk-free interest rate range 2.25%
Expected dividend yield 0%
Expected volatility of common stock 1%
Expected weighted-average life of option 2 years

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s employee
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the existing models do not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

See independent accountant's review report.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE F - 5TOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY - continued

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information 1s as follows:

Balance of Outstanding Options at
January 1, 2020

Granted
Exercised

Forfeited

Balance of Outstanding Options at
December 31, 2020

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

Balance of Outstanding Options at
December 31, 2021

Expected to vest after December 31, 2021

Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2021

See independent accountant's review report,

Weighted
Woeighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Life (Years) Value
6,630,692 § 116
689,776 1.00
7,320,468 1.13
797,711 1.00
(1,167,698) (1.25)
6,950,481 5  0.91 6.4 $ 764,553
211,296 5 1.02 8.9 3 4.226
6,739,185 $ 110 6.3 $ 539135

-11 -



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE F - 5TOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY - continued

Weighted
Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested options at January 1, 2020 241,382 b 1.01
Granted 689776 1.00
Vested (709,776) 1.00
Forfeited - -
Non-vested options at December 31, 2020 221,382 1.01
Granted 797,711 1.00
Vested (803,849) 1.03
Forfeited (3.948) 1.25
Non-vested options at December 31, 2021 211.296 ) 1.02

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the pretax value, based on the difference between the price of the
Company’s common stock of $1.00 per share at December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the exercise price of the options.

The total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements is $0 as of
December 31, 2021 and 2020.

Stock Warrants: The Company has outstanding 113,085 stock warrants as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, issued
primarily to third party vendors and consultants, and convertible into common stock on a 1 to 1 basis, The
warrants have a 10-year life and expire in various quantities from 2022 to 2028,

NOTE G = RELATED PARTY

The Company has an agreement with VGM Group, Inc (VGM), whereby VGM provides billing and marketing
services to the Company. The agreement 1s effective through December 31, 2024 with terms allowing any number
of successive 5-year renewal periods. VGM is a shareholder of the Company. Per the agreement, the Company
provides a discount to Group Members of VGM related to their product and pays an admimistrative fee to VGM for
their billing services. Fees incurred by the Company to VGM under the arrangement totaled approximately
510,000 1n 2021 and 2020. The Company owes VGM approximately $335,000 at December 31,2021 and $32,000
at December 31, 2020 under this agreement. The Company also has a long-term note and revolving Line of Credit
with VGM (see Note D).

In the normal course of business, the Company may at times utilize the services of affiliated entities of VGM.

See independent accountant's review report,
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE H - LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Real Estate Leases: The Company leases its primary administrative office and distribution facility in San Antonio
under a three-year agreement, ending August 2025, The lease requires a minimum monthly payment of $17,617
under the current terms. Total rent expense on this lease was approximately $179,000 in 2021 and $208,000 in
2020, The Company subleases part of their office space to an unrelated Company and recognized rental income of
approximately $36,000 in 2021 and $34,000 in 2020,

Future minimum lease payments required by the lease are as follows,

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2022 5 200,890
2023 211,400
2024 211.400
2025 140,933

NOTE 1 - INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and liabilities consist of the following components at December 31:

2021 2020
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable allowance b 18918 $ 19128
Net operating loss carryforward 8,537,297 9,014 852
Gross deferred tax assets 8.556.215 9.033,980
Deferred tax liability:
Depreciation differences 16,478 2,507
MNet deferred tax asset 8.572.693 9036487
Less valuation allowance (8,572,693) (9,036,487)
MNet deferred tax asset reported S - 3 -

The Company has net operating losses available for carryforward through 2040 of approximately $43 million.

Management provides a valuation allowance for any deferred tax asset that it believes it may not realize. In
assessing the ability to realize deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that
some portion or all the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets 1s
dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences
become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future
taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable
income and projections for future taxable income over periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible,
management believes it is more likely than not the Company will realize the benefits of these deductible
differences, net of the existing valuation allowance, at December 31, 2021,

See independent accountant's review report.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements
December 31, 2021, and 2020

NOTE J - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company 1s involved in various claims and hitigation from time to time in the normal course of operations.
Management does not expect any such matters in which it is currently involved to result in significant loss.

NOTE K - CURRENT ECONOMIC CONDITIONS

Certain current economic events have arisen which could impact the Company’s ongoing operations. As aresult of
the COVID-19 pandemic, mandated and voluntary closings have caused various business and supply chain
disruptions which have an indeterminate duration. Additionally, the effects of economic stimulus programs and
U.5. Federal Reserve actions remain uncertain. These matters could impact numerous facets of the business
environment including interest rates, inflation, and the availability of goods, capital and labor. Any related financial
impact cannot be reasonably estimated at this time,

See independent accountant's review report,
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INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc.
San Antonio, Texas

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc, which
comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, and the related statements of operations, changes
in stockholders” equity, and cash flows for the vears then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.
A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and making inquiries
of management. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an
opinion regarding the financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this mcludes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility 15 to conduct the review engagements in accordance with Statements on Standards for
Accounting and Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA.
Those standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we
are aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the
results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion
Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

ADKFAC

ADKF, P.C.
San Antonio, Texas
August 15, 2022

MAIN OFFICE:
o+ LY
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets

Rental Medical Equipment
Less accumulated depreciation
Net rental medical equipment

Fixed Assets:

Furniture and fixtures

Manufacturing equipment

Computer equipment

Software

Leasehold improvements
Total fixed assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Net fixed assets

Other Assets, net of amortization

Total Assets

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

-2.

2020

2019

219,385
489,583
435,269

21,793

910,186
417,347
09,817

43,137

[, 166,030

820,242
(661,422)

1,880,487

640,292
(637.433)

158,820

59.867
86,168
85,331
60,962
112,411

2,859

48,007
49,538
80,578
60,962
112,411

304,739
(252,361)

351,496
(241 267)

152,378

110,229

3.614

b

1,477,228

1,997,189



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable, trade b 95,728 s 158 872
Accounts payable, related party 32,187 34779
Insurance premium payable 13,567 8,506
Accrued expenses 756,156 463,134
Current portion of notes payable 2,602 -
Total current liabilities GO0, 240 665,291
Long-Term Liabilities
Convertible related party note payable 1,800,000 1,800,000
Related party line of credit 500,000 -
Motes payable, long-term 407,598 -
Total long-term liabilities 2,707,598 1,800,000
Stockholders' Equity:
Preferred stock, .01 par value; 5,000,000 shares
authorized, (0 shares 1ssued and outstanding - -
Common stock, $.01 par value; 45,000,000 shares
authorized, 38,102,879 shares issued and outstanding 381,029 371,029
Additional paid-in capital 42,962,791 41,942,605
Accumulated {deficit) (45.474.,430) (42.781,736)
Total stockholders' equity (deficit) (2,130,610) (468,102)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 5 1477228 S 1,997,189

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Statements of Operations

Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Revenues:
Rental revenue 5 53 861 551,880
Sales 796,518 726,877
Total revenues 1,450,379 1,278,757
Cost of Revenues 346,961 471,835
Gross profit [, 103,418 206,922
Operating Expenses:
Salaries and payroll taxes 1,111,790 1,100,598
Professional fees 1,010,328 1,164,606
General and administrative 443,746 623,250
Selling expenses 495,689 476,117
Office expenses 48,885 53,173
Office rent 266,531 284 . 463
Depreciation 43,890 9,502
Amortization, other assets 3,614 2,219
Bad debts HE,537 115,372
Chinical trial costs - 585
Research and development 287.051 120,811
Total operating expenses 3,800,061 3,950,696
Operating (Loss) (2.696,643) (3,143.774)
Other Income (Expense):
Rental income 33 883 32.720
Other income 114,555 60,000
Interest expense (142,871) (39,945)
Other expenses (1,618) (2.363)
Other income (expense), net 3.949 50412
Net (Loss) $ (2,692.694) 5 (3.093,362)

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Balance at January 1, 2019

Share based compensation related to stock options
MNet (loss) for the year

Balance at January 1, 2020
Share based compensation related 1o stock options

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Net (loss) for the year

Balance at December 31, 2020

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

Total
Additional Stockholders'
Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Shares Aimount Capital ( Deficit) ( Deficit)
37,102 879 ] 371,029 % 41,908,932 5 (39,688,374) $ 2,591,587
- - 33,673 - 33,673
- - (3,093,362) (3,093,362)
37,102,879 371,029 41,942,605 (42,781,736) (468,102)
- - 30,186 - 30,186
1.000,000 10,000 Q0,000 - 1,000,000
- - - (2,692 694) (2,692.694)
38,102,879 h 381,029 £ 42,962,791 5 (45.474.430) 5 (2.130,610)




ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

Operating Activities
MNet loss
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) to net
cash (used) by operating activities;
Depreciation
Amortization
Moncash compensation expense
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
MNet cash (used) by operating activities

Cashfows from investing activities
Purchase of rental medical equipment
Purchase of fixed assets

Net cash (used) by investing activities

Financing Activities
Proceeds from long-term debt, third party
Proceeds from long-term debt, related party
Repayment of long-term debt, third party
Proceeds from 1ssuance of common stock
Net cash provided by financing activities

Net change in cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Supplemental Disclosures
Interest paid in cash
Income taxes paid in cash

See independent accountant's review report and notes to reviewed financial statements.

2020

b

(2,692,694)

43,890
3,614
30,186

(72,236)
74,548
21,344

227,286

2019

(2.364,062)

(188,757)
(23,243)

$ (3,093,362)

9,502
2,219
33,673

(264,6355)
162,132
5,721
11,748

(242,000)

432,327

500,000

(17,066)
1,000,000

(3,133,022)

(2,383)

1,915,261

(2,383)

21,006
1,800,000
(22,148)

(690,801)
910,186

1,798 858

$

219,385

(1,336,547)
2,246,733

5 910,186



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Chrganization: Electrochemical Oxygen Concepts, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated in the State of Delaware
on May 18, 2007. The Company researches and develops advanced wound care technology and has developed a
proprietary technology called the OxyGeni System (formerly known as the TransCu 02 System), which consists of
the OxyGeni wound oxygenation and monitoring device, OxySpur oxygen diffusion dressings and associated
accessories. This technology aids in the healing process by providing a continuous supply of pure, humidified
oxygen directly to the affected tissue. The Company, through a vendor agreement with the VGM Group, makes
the unit available to VGM Group members and markets its technology to Veteran Affairs, Indian Health,
Plastics/Cosmetics, and Insurance providers.

Revenue Recognition: Revenue is derived from the rental or sale of its OxyGeni System and sale of the OxySpur
oxygen diffusion dressings. The control of the product is generally transferred when the produet is delivered.
Revenue is recognized at a point in time once the performance obligation is complete, control is transferred to the
customer, pervasive evidence of a purchase or rental arrangement exists, price to buyer is determinable, and
collection 1s probable. Deductions from sales for discounts, 1f granted, are recorded as reductions of revenues, and
are provided for at the time of initial sale. Sales taxes billed are reported directly as a liability to the taxing
authority and are not included in revenue.

Cash and Cash Equivalents: Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits held by financial institutions
and temporary cash investments with a maturity of three months or less.

Accounts Receivable: Accounts receivable is reported at outstanding principal net of an allowance for doubtful
accounts. The allowance is determined by an account-by-account review as well as historical trends. Accounts are
charged off when collection etforts have failed, and the account 15 deemed uncollectible. The allowance totaled
$91,084 at December 31, 2020 and $117,919 at December 31, 2019, The Company normally does not charge
interest on accounts receivable,

Inventories: Parts and supplies inventory 1s valued at lower of cost or net realizable value as determined using the
standard cost method.

Rental Eguipment:  Rental equipment, consisting primarily of the OxvGeni device, is stated at cost less
depreciation, calculated using the straight-line method over a useful life generally of three years. The cost of the
dressings in our device are expensed and not capitalized.

Fived Assets: Fixed assets are stated at cost net of accumulated depreciation. Additions, renewals, and betterments
are capitalized. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to expense. Depreciation is calculated using
accelerated and straight-line methods over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which range from three to fifteen
years.

(Mher Assets: Other assets represent a patent and a domain name and are stated at cost, net of accumulated
amortization. Amortization 1s provided at amounts calculated to amortize the cost straight-line over 10 years.
Accumulated amortization totaled $50.688 at December 31, 2020 and 547.074 at December 31, 2019,
Amortization expense totaled $3,614 for 2020 and $2,219 for 2019, All intangible and similar assets are evaluated
for impairment on an annual basis.

Share Based Compensation: The Company recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment awards
made to employees and directors, including grants of emplovee stock options, based on estimated fair values,
Stock-based compensation expense is based on the value of the portion of share-based payment awards that is
ultimately expected to vest during the year.

See independent accountant's review report.



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Income Taxes: The Company 1s taxed as a C corporation for federal income tax purposes. Deferred federal
income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and the tax basis
of assets and liabilities and are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that are expected to be in effect when
the differences reverse. The Company is subject to the Texas margin tax. Management i1s not aware of any tax
positions that would have a significant impact on its financial position. Its federal tax returns for the last four years
remain subject to examination.

Advertising: Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and totaled approximately $42,000 in 2020 and $26,000 in
2019,

Government Regulations: The Company is subject to federal, state and local provisions regulating the discharge of
materials into the environment. Management believes that its current practices and procedures for the control and
disposition of such wastes comply with applicable federal and state requirements.

Cancentrations of Risk: Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk
consist principally of temporary cash investments. Company deposits with financial institutions on occasion may
exceed the FDIC insured amount.

Subsequent Events: Subsequent events have been evaluated by management through the date of the independent
accountant's review report,  Material subsequent events, if any, are disclosed in a separate footnote to these
financial statements,

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U. S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
labilities and disclosure of contingent assets and habilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncement: In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
1ssued Accounting Standard Update 2014-09, which 1s also referred to as Accounting Standards Codification ASC
Topic 606 (Topic 606) regarding revenue recognition, effective for periods beginning after December 15, 2018,
This standard applies to all contracts with customers, except for contracts that are within the scope of other
standards, such as leases, insurance, collaboration arrangements and financial instruments. The Company adopted
this new standard effective January 1, 2019, under modified retrospective method. While adoption of this standard
required additional disclosures, adoption did not have a material impact on the financial statements and no
adjustments were made to prior periods.

New Accounting Pronouncements:  In February 2016, the FASB issued a new accounting pronouncement
regarding lease accounting for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2021, A lessee will be required to
recognize on the balance sheet the assets and liabilities for leases with lease terms of more than 12 months.
Management is currently evaluating the effect this pronouncement will have on the financial statements and related
disclosures,

See independent accountant's review report.



ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE A - ORGANIZATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In June 2016, the FASB 1ssued ASU No. 2016-13 Financial Instruments-Credit Losses (Topic 3260): Measurement
af Credit Loses on financial Instruments which requires the application of a current expected credit loss (CECL)
impairment model to financial assets measured at amortized cost, including trade accounts receivable. Under the
CECL model, hifetime expected credit losses on such financial assets are measured and recognized at each
reporting date based on historical, current, and forecasted information. Furthermore, financial assets with similar
risk characteristics are analyzed on a collective basis. This ASU, as amended, is etfective for periods beginning
after December 15, 2022 with early adoption permitted. Management is currently evaluating the effect this
pronouncement will have on the financial statements and related disclosures.

NOTE B - GOING CONCERN

The Company has continued to report significant operating losses as its proprietary medical technology products
are developed and markets established. However, as noted in Note D, the PPP loan was fully forgiven in 2021.

In 2021 and through the date of the independent accountant's review report, the Company received $500,000 for
common stock, $1,000,000 in related party note payable at 6% interest, and continues to seek additional funding
tor 2021 operations. Management expects revenues from sales of its proprietary products in 202 | to increase from
2020 levels. Additionally, as described in Note E, the payroll protection program loan was fully forgiven,
NOTE C - INVENTORIES

Inventories consist of the following at December 31;

2020 2019
Raw materials $ 313460 S 316,247
Finished goods 111,361 182,968
Demo inventory 10,174 10,328
Marketing materials 274 274
Total inventories § 435269 S S09817

See independent accountant's review report,




ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE D - LONG-TERM DEBT

In August 2019, the Company agreed to a 51,800,000 convertible promissory note to VGM Group, Inc., a related
party, with interest at 6.00% and due on demand on or after June 30, 2023, secured through conversion features,
VGM Group has the option to convert the note into common stock of the Company at 51.00 per share or at an

equivalent price per share should the Company sell common stock to investors of not less than $3,000,000,

The Company has a revolving line of credit with VGM Group, Inc. of $500,000, with interest at 9.00% maturing
June 30, 2023, Borrowings of $500,000 were advanced under this line of credit at December 31, 2020,

In 2020, the Company received an Economic Injury Disaster loan in the amount of $150,000, with interest at
3.75% maturing May 21, 2050, The company also received a Paycheck Protection Program loan (see Note D).

Maturities of long-term debt will require the following principal payments:

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2021 5 2.602
2022 263,605
2023 2,303,431
2024 3,562
2025 3 6098
Thereafter 133,302

NOTE E - PAYROLL PROTECTION PROGRAM

The Company received funding under the Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) as part of the Coronavirus Aid,
Relief, and Economic Security Act (CARES Act), administered by the U.5. Small Business Administration (SBA).
Under the terms of the unsecured note, the Company received proceeds of $260,300 with interest a 1% and
maturity on April 21, 2022, The principal may be forgiven if the loan proceeds are used for qualifying expenses as
described in the CARES Act, such as payroll costs, benefits, rent, and utilities,

All proceeds were used for payroll costs and business utility payments. Management applied for forgiveness and
received formal confirmation of forgiveness of the loan in its entirety in March 2021. The loan is classified as long-
term debt at December 31, 2020 and will be recogmized as debt forgiveness income in 2021,

NOTE F - STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY

The Company grants options to its employees under its Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan™). The Plan allows for the
grant of up to 4,000,000 shares of common stock to management, employees and other persons who provide
services to the Company. All options granted have a vesting schedule with a term of immediate to one vear and
become fully exercisable based on other specific terms imposed at the date of grant.

See independent accountant's review report.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.

Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE F - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - continued

The Company uses the Black-Sholes option-pricing method. The fair value for options 1s estimated at the date of
grant with the following weighted-average assumptions as of period end:

Risk-free interest rate range
Expected dividend vield

Expected volatility of common stock
Expected weighted-average life of option

2.25%
0%

1%

2 years

The Black-Scholes option-pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of traded options which
have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the input of
highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price volatility. Because the Company’s employee
stock options have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, the existing models do not necessarily
provide a reliable single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

A summary of the Company’s stock option activity and related information is as follows:

Balance of Outstanding Options at
January 1, 2019

Granted

Exercised
Forfeited

Balance of Outstanding Options at
January 1, 2020

Granted
Exercised
Forfeited

Balance of Outstanding Options at
December 31, 2020

Expected to vest after December 31, 2020

Vested and exercisable at December 31, 2020

See independent accountant's review report.

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Life (Years) Value
5,880,305 5 116
7169 387 1.00
(25,000) (1.00)
6,630,692 1.16
689,776 1.00
7,320,468 S 113 5.9 § BT78A456
221,382 S 101 9.3 S 2,214
7,099,086 S 113 5.8 § 851,890
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE F - STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY - continued

Weighted
Average

Number of Grant Date

Shares Fair Value
Non-vested options at January 1, 2019 184,875 b 1.43
Granted 769,387 1.00
Vested (HRT.ER0) 1.11
Forfeited {25,000) 1.00
Non-vested options at January 1, 2020 241,382 1.01
Granted 689,776 1.00
Vested (709,776) 1.00
Forfeited - -
Non-vested options at December 31, 2020 221,382 % 1.01

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the pretax value, based on the difference between the price of the
Company’s common stock of $1.00 per share at December 31, 2020 and 2019 and the exercise price of the options.

The total unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements is $0 as of

December 31, 2020 and 2019,

Stock Warrants: The Company has outstanding 113,085 stock warrants as of December 31, 2020 and 2019, 1ssued
primarily to third party vendors and consultants, and convertible into common stock on a | to 1 basis. The
warrants have a 10-year life and expire in varnious quantities from 2022 to 2028,

NOTE G — RELATED PARTY

The Company has an agreement with VGM Group, Inc (VGM), whereby VGM provides billing and marketing
services to the Company. The agreement is effective through December 31, 2024 with terms allowing any number
of successive S-year renewal periods. VGM i1s a shareholder of the Company. Per the agreement, the Company
provides a discount to Group Members of VGM related to their product and pays an administrative fee to VGM for
their billing services. Fees incurred by the Company to VGM under the arrangement totaled approximately
$10,000in 2020 and 2019. The Company owes VGM approximately $32,000 at December 31,2020 and $35,000
at December 31, 2019 under this agreement. The Company also has a long-term note and revolving Line of Credit
with VGM (see Note C).

In the normal course of business, the Company may at times utilize the services of affiliated entities of VGM.

See independent accountant's review report.
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ELECTROCHEMICAL OXYGEN CONCEPTS, INC.
Notes to Reviewed Financial Statements

December 31, 2020 and 2019

NOTE H - LEASING ARRANGEMENTS

Real Estate Leases: The Company leases its primary administrative office and distribution facility in San Antonio
under a three-year agreement, ending August 2022, The lease requires a minimum monthly payment of $17,302,
with the payments escalating annually. Total rent expense on this lease was approximately $208,000 in 2020 and
$207,000 in 2019, The Company subleases part of their office space to an unrelated Company and recognized
rental income of approximately $34,000 in 2020 and $33.000 in 2019,

Future minimum lease payments required by the lease are as follows,

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2021 208,632
2022 139 423

NOTE 1 - INCOME TAXES

Deferred tax assets and habilities consist of the following components at December 31:

2020 2019
Deferred tax assets:
Accounts receivable allowance b 19,128 S 24.763
Net operating loss carryfor